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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Grayson College
6101 Grayson Drive
Denison, Texas

Members of the Board:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented component
unit of Grayson College (College) as of and for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’ s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

M anagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Gover nment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtai n reasonabl e assurance about whether thefinancia statementsare
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of thefinancial statements, whether dueto fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’ sinternal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit al so includes eval uating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the respective financial
position of the business-type activities and discretely presented component unit of Grayson Collegeasof August 31, 2013 and
2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, isrequired by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considersit to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statementsin an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited proceduresto the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consi stency with management’ s responsesto our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
College' sbasicfinancia statements. The accompanying supplementary schedulesand statistical supplement listed inthetable
of contentsare presented for purposes of additional analysisand are not arequired part of the basic financial statements. The
schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and
are not arequired part of the basic financia statements.

The supplementary schedul es of operating revenues, operating expenses by object, non-operating revenues and expenses, net
assets by source and availability, schedul e of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of state awardsare
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to preparethe financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financia statementsor to the basic financia
statement themselves, and other additional proceduresin accordance with auditing standardsgenerally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in al material respectsin relation to the basic financial
statements as awhole.

The organizational dataand the statistical supplement have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 27, 2013, on our
consideration of the College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report isto describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion oninternal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report isan integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sandards in considering the College’ sinternal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

ﬂa&wmﬁ, Juua&tj, c C’wm.paij, L.LP

Sherman, Texas
November 27, 2013



GRAYSON COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2013

Management’ s discussion and analysis of Grayson College’ sfinancia performance providesan overview of the college' sfinancia
activitiesfor thefiscal year ended August 31, 2013. 1t should beread in conjunction with the college’ sfinancial statementswhich
follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e  Grayson College continued its pattern of good financial performance, again increasing total net position. For fiscal year
2012-2013, total net position increased $3,565,517, or 8.3%. In fiscal year 2011-2012 total net position increased
$4,348,747, and in fiscal year 2010-2011 the increase was $2,233,651.

e  Unrestricted net position also increased infiscal year 2012-2013, growing from $25,106,839 to $25,653,069, for a2.2%
increase.

e Total assets grew from $100,874,207 at August 31, 2012 to $102,098,394 at August 31, 2013.

e Total liabilities were $55,414,963 at August 31, 2013, down from $57,756,293 at August 31, 2012.

e  Operating revenue decreased 7.6% to $9,514,847.

e  Operating expenses for fiscal year 2012-2013 were $36,487,076, down slightly from the prior fiscal year, in which the
operating expenses were $36,596,414.

e Net non-operating revenues decreased $1,216,225 or 4.0%, infiscal year 2012-2013, as compared with the prior fiscal
year.

EXPLANATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Annual Financial Report consists of aseries of financial statements. The core statements are known as the Statement of Net
Position, the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changesin Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows. These statements
comply with all the Statementsissued by the Governmental Accounting StandardsBoard (GASB) that are currently in effect. Most
significantly, they comply with GASB Statements 34 and 35, which are landmark pronouncementsthat changed the basic structure
of financia reporting for governmental entities.

As discussed in the Notes to the Financial Statements, the College has adopted Statement 63 of the Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). This statement wasissued to address deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources,
which do not affect Grayson College. However, in addressing these issues GASB changed the names of the financial statements.
The most noticeable name change is that the term “net position” replaces the earlier term “net assets.” Each of these terms
basically refer to the equity in the organization.

The Satement of Net Position reflects assets, liabilities and net position at a particular date of measurement, in this case August
31, 2013. In many respectsit is similar to a balance sheet. The elements of the statement are classified as current assets, non-
current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and net position. Theterm “net position” replacestheearlier termsof “net
assets and “fund balance.” Net position is further broken down asinvested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted, and
unrestricted.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Position provides information on the change in net position from the
end of the prior fiscal year to the end of the current fiscal year by reporting on operating revenues, operating expenses, non-
operating revenues and expenses and other revenues and expenses. Operating income (loss), whichisthe net of operating revenue
and operating expenses, shows the financial result of the college’s operations. Significantly, appropriations from the State of
Texasand ad valoremtaxesfrom local property ownersare reported in non-operating revenues and expenses because they do not
come from our users, but rather from taxes on those that do not directly benefit from our services.

The Satement of Cash Flows provides rel evant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the college during the
fiscal year. The Satement of Cash Flows is intended to compliment the accrual basis of accounting used in the financial
statements by providing information about financing, capital and investing activities.



CONDENSED COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Thefollowing statements are condensed presentations of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position. These are provided as summaries. For more complete presentations, please see the actual

statements shown in following sections of this Annual Financial Report.

Condensed Statement of Net Position
August 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Assets
Capital assets (net accumulated depreciation) $ 69,644,728 $ 68,964,140
All other assets 32,453,666 31,910,067
Total assets 102,098,394 100,874,207
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 49,396,515 52,292,895
All other liahilities 6,018,448 5,463,398
Total liabilities 55,414,963 57,756,293
Net Position
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 18,669,846 15,297,786
Restricted 2,360,516 2,713,289
Unrestricted 25,653,069 25,106,839
Total Net Position $ 46,683,431 $43,117,914
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Position
for Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012
2013 2012
Operating Revenue
Tuition and fees (net of discounts) $ 4,877,086 $ 4,923,045
Operating grants and contracts 2,526,858 3,445,770
Auxiliary enterprises (net of discounts) 1,859,497 1,700,829
Other operating revenues 251,406 230,300
Total Operating Revenues 9,514,847 10,299,944
Operating Expenses
Instruction 12,660,386 13,235,594
Public service 596,817 630,664
Academic support 1,618,817 1,512,159
Student services 2,217,698 2,155,275
Intitutional support 3,805,382 3,898,636
Operation and maintenance of plant 4,374,472 3,073,430
Scholarships and fellowships 5,450,594 6,510,510
Auxiliary enterprises 3,715,719 3,589,818
Depreciation 2,047,191 1,990,328
Total Operating Expenses 36,487,076 36,596,414
Operating Income (L 0ss) (26,972,229) (26,296,470)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriations 8,966,973 9,002,532
Ad valorem taxes 12,822,687 12,578,742
Net other non-operating revenues (expenses) 7,629,332 9,053,943
Net Non-Operating revenues (expenses) 29,418,992 30,635,217




Income befor e Contributions and Transfers 2,446,763 4,338,747

Capital Contributions 1,108,754 -
Transfers 10,000 10,000
Increasein Net Position 3,565,517 4,348,747
Net Position - Beginning of Year 43,117,914 38,769,167
Net Position - End of Year $ 46,683,431 $43,117,914

DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

As noted above, Grayson College had a successful fiscal year in 2012-2013, continuing the pattern of good financial results.
The chief measure of the financial successisasolid increase in net position, which can be viewed as a measure of wealth for the
school. Infiscal year 2012-2013, net position for Grayson College increased $3,565,517, or 8.3%, indicating a high level of
financial success.

Grayson College usesa set of financial ratiosto judgeitsfinancial position and theresults of itsoperations. The college compares

the ratios from its current fiscal year with those of past years and with the most recent statewide averages for Texas community
colleges as reported by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB).

Texas Community

Grayson College College Average

2013 2012 2011 2012
Return on Net Position 8.3% 11.2% 6.1% 7.4%
Financia Vulnerability 0.70 0.69 0.56 0.29
Primary Reserve Ratio 0.72 0.72 0.60 0.39
Viability Ratio 0.57 0.53 0.46 175
Debt Burden Ratio 6.3% 6.4% 6.3% 3.2%
Net Operating Revenue Ratio 6.3% 10.6% 5.4% 6.5%

Return on Net Position: Calculated by dividing the change in net position by net position at the start of the fiscal year, thisratio
providesinformation of the degree of changein the college’ swealth from one year to the next. Grayson College' sresultsfor fiscal
year 2012-2013 were solid at 8.3%, in line with prior fiscal years and the state-wide average for fiscal year 2011-2012.

Financial Vulnerability Ratio: Calculated by dividing unrestricted net position by total operating expenses, thisratio measuresan
organi zation’ sability to cover itsexpendituresfrom existing resources. Grayson College' sresultswere steady for 2012-2013 and
are well over the state average.

Primary Reserve Ratio: Dividing expendable net position by total expenses produces this ratio which is a gauge of financial
strength and flexibility. Itissimilar to thefinancial vulnerability ratio, but it takesinto account expendabl e restricted net position
and non-operating expenses. Again, Grayson's results are steady and are much higher than the state average.

Viahility Ratio: Dividing expendable reserves by long-term debt producestheviability ratio. Grayson College' sratio reflectsthe
addition of the $44,700,000 in general obligation debt but is improving over time as the debt load is paid off. The fact that
Grayson College has a high debt |oad relative to other Texas community collegesis reflected in thisratio.



Debt Burden Ratio: Thisratio measures how much of acollege’ stotal expense goesfor debt service. Itiscalculated by dividing
debt service by total expenditures. The ratio has remained stable but at alevel higher than the average community college.

Net Operating Revenue Ratio: This ratio indicates an operating surplus or deficit. It is calculated by dividing income before
transfers by the sum of total operating revenues and net non-operating revenues. For 2012-2013, Grayson College’ sresultswere
comparable to the average results for community collegesin fiscal year 2011-2012.

Thefollowing chart showsthe net position at the end of recent fiscal years. The net position indicatesthe wealth of aschool. The
unrestricted segment has the most flexibility in meeting financial opportunitiesor challenges. The chart providesaquick, visual
representation of the recent history of excellent financial results that Grayson College has enjoyed.
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The Grayson College Foundation isacomponent unit of Grayson College. Inaccordancewith GASB Statement 39, the financial
statements of the foundation are presented with those of the college. The prescribed presentation isfor thefoundation’ s statement
to be presented separately in a format known as a discrete presentation. For fiscal year 2012-2013 the net position of the
foundation increased $ 1,528,016, to $11,381,136.



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Themost significant activity in capital assetsisassociated with the construction and renovation of facilitiesfunded by the general
obligation bond issues from fiscal year 2007-2008. In May 2007, local voters approved the i ssuance of $44,790,000 in general
obligation bonds. Major projects completed in prior fiscal years from these bond proceeds include: (1) the construction of the
Career and Technology Center which houses occupational programs, (2) the expansion and renovation of the Arts and
Communications Center, (3) construction of a second floor connection between the Library and the Student Life Center, and the
renovation of each of those buildings, (4) the renovation of the Sports and Recreation Center, and (5) the renovation of various
other facilities on the Main Campusand the West Extension. The construction of the last major bond-financed project, aCulinary
Arts/Hospitality Building, was substantially completed in January 2012, although final payment has not yet been made dueto the
need to correct some minor construction defects. Approximately $900,000 of interest accumulated from the investment of bond
proceeds remains to be used. Currently the college is considering using these funds to expand its capability for instruction in
developmental math.

Two other capital projectsare also significant. Oneisthe replacement of the college’ s sewer treatment facility by connecting to
the City of Denison’ssystem. The City of Denison has completed the construction on the sewer main to the campus. The college
has awarded a contract for the construction of alift station and alengthy force service lineto connect to the new sewer main. The
college’ stotal cost isestimated at $1,300,000 and the project was substantially complete by October 31, 2013. The other project
is the construction of a faculty to provide technical instruction on our South Campus in Van Alstyne. The facility will house
programsin occupational safety, medical laboratory technician, welding, and electrician. Construction isnearing completion, and
instruction will beginin the new building for the Spring 2014 semester. Thetotal cost of the new facility for technical instruction
will be approximately $4,000,000, with approximately one-half of the funding provided by theU. S. Department of Commerceand
the remaining funding coming from Grayson College's resources.

In October 2010, the college issued $16,150,000 in Consolidated Fund Revenue Refunding Bonds. The transaction created an
economic benefit to the college by replacing bondsissued in 2002, 2003 and 2004 with new debt at alower interest rate, without
lengthening the maturity date of the debt. The college does not expect to issue any debt in the foreseeable future.

OPERATING OUTLOOK

Management is not aware of any facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have a significant effect on the college’s
financial position or results of operations.

CONTACTING THE COLLEGE’'SFINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Thefinancial report isdesigned to provide citizens, taxpayers, students and other customers, investorsand creditorswith ageneral
overview of the college's finances and to demonstrate the college’s accountability for the money it receives. Requests for
additional financial information may be directed to the Vice President for Business Services, Grayson College, Denison, Texas,
75020.
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ASSETS

Current Assets

Grayson College
Statement of Net Position
August 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash and Cash Equivaents
Short-Term Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful / uncollectible accounts)

Prepaid Expenses

Inventories for Resale
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Other Long-Term Investments

Escrow Deposit for Sewer Line

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Bond Issuance Cogts (net of accumulated amortization)

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities

Funds Held for Others

Deferred Revenues
Deposits Payable

Notes and L eases Payable (current portion)
Bonds Payable (current portion)
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Accrued Compensated Absences

Notes and L eases Payable (net of current portion)
Bonds Payable (net of current portion)

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for:

Expendable:

Student Financial Aid Programs
Instructional Programs

Loans

Capital Projects
Debt Service

Other
Unrestricted

Total Net Position (Schedule D)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 1

2013 2012
13,301,538 11,585,358
8,265,949 15,864,622
1,756,184 1,268,545
105,085 109,144
896,081 888,924
24,324,837 29,716,593
6,008,091 250,501
159,529 806,200
69,644,728 68,964,140
1,061,209 1,136,773
77,773,557 71,157,614
102,098,394 100,874,207
1,559,236 1,189,252
209,574 228,180
471,364 549,243
938,604 795,214
42,980 44,780
40,782 38,638
2,755,908 2,618,091
6,018,448 5,463,398
157,114 146,497
100,560 141,342
49,138,841 52,005,056
49,396,515 52,292,895
55,414,963 57,756,293
18,669,846 15,297,786
517,667 504,820
47,580 53,062
46,537 46,471
662,202 1,307,420
1,079,651 794,084
6,879 7,432
25,653,069 25,106,839
46,683,431 43,117,914




Grayson College

Affiliated Organizations

Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-Term Investments
Accrued Interest Receivable
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Long-Term Investments
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted
Permanently Restricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Grayson College Foundation, Inc.

2013 2012
$ 968,354 $ 750,293
306,898 325,398
478 633
1,275,730 1,076,324
9,070,573 7,715,762
1,035,828 1,065,030
10,106,401 8,780,792
11,382,131 9,857,116
995 3,996
995 3,996
535,828 565,030
3,302,911 2,476,719
7,542,397 6,811,371
$ 11,381,136 $ 9,853,120




Grayson College

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Position

Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

Operating Revenues

Tuition and Fees (net of discounts of $4,036,039 and $4,527,144)
Federal Grants and Contracts

State Grants and Contracts

Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts

Sales and Services of Educational Activities

Auxiliary Enterprises (net of discounts of $1,804,167 and $1,936,437)
Other Operating Revenues

Total Operating Revenues (Schedule A)

Operating Expenses

Instruction

Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services

Ingtitutional Support

Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses (Schedule B)

Operating Income (L 0ss)

Non-Oper ating Revenues (Expenses)

State Appropriations

Ad-Vaorem Taxes for Maintenance and Operations
Ad-Valorem Taxes for General Obligation Bonds
Federal Grants and Contracts, Non-Operating

Investment Income (Net of Investment Expenses)

Interest on Capital Related Debt

Gain (Loss) of Disposition of Property

Other Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Non-Oper ating Revenues (Expenses) (Schedule C)

Income Before Contributionsand Transfers

Federal Grants and Contracts (Capital Contributions)
Transfer from GC Foundation (Component Unit)

Increasein Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Y ear

Net Position - End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 2

2013 2012
4,877,086 4,923,045
1,245,439 1,833,206
999,128 1,365,458
282,291 247,106
51,123 49,346
1,859,497 1,700,829
200,283 180,954
9,514,847 10,299,944
12,660,386 13,235,594
596,817 630,664
1,618,817 1,512,159
2,217,698 2,155,275
3,805,382 3,898,636
4,374,472 3,073,430
5,450,594 6,510,510
3,715,719 3,589,818
2,047,191 1,990,328
36,487,076 36,596,414
(26,972,229) (26,296,470)
8,966,973 9,002,532
9,244,001 9,445,550
3,578,686 3,133,192
9,745,101 11,187,966
64,590 92,886
(2,159,643) (2,226,909)
(20,782) -
66 -
29,418,992 30,635,217
2,446,763 4,338,747
1,108,754 -
10,000 10,000
3,565,517 4,348,747
43,117,914 38,769,167
46,683,431 43,117,914




Revenues

Gifts and Contributions

Giftsin Kind - Grayson College
Federal Grants

Building Rentals

Other Income

Interest / Investment Income
Unrealized Investment Income

Total Revenues

Expenses

Salary and Wages
Services and Supplies
Scholarships
Depreciation

Total Expenses

Income Before Transfers

Transfer to Grayson College

Changein Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of Year

Grayson College
Affiliated Organizations
Statement of Activities

Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

Grayson College Foundation, Inc.

2013 2012
1,425,563 $ 1,025,085
220,237 206,929
10,000 10,000
17,634 16,976

- 1,300

48,836 131,449
469,929 408,595
2,192,199 1,800,334
177,174 173,735
105,016 107,190
342,791 269,666
29,202 29,202
654,183 579,793
1,538,016 1,220,541
(10,000) (10,000)
1,528,016 1,210,541
9,853,120 8,642,579
11,381,136 $ 9,853,120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Grayson College
Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Students and Other Customers $ 7,012,800 $ 7,179,826
Receipts of Grants and Contracts 2,594,979 4,074,069
Paymentsto or on Behalf of Employees (17,389,048) (17,090,315)
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (9,724,891) (9,776,181)
Payments of Scholarships (5,450,594) (6,510,510)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (22,956,754) (22,123,111)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Ad-Vaorem Tax Revenues 12,836,883 12,603,956
Receipts of State Appropriations 7,499,167 7,575,517
Receipts of Grants and Contracts (Nonoperating) 9,746,314 11,188,914
Receipts from Student Organizations and Other Agency Transactions 1,209,306 1,697,890
Payments to Student Organizations and Other Agency Transactions (1,280,287) (1,687,179)
Transfer from GC Foundation (Component Unit) 10,000 10,000
Other 66 -
Net Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 30,021,449 31,389,098
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital Contracts, Gifts and Grants 622,781 -
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 6,750 -
Purchases of Capital Assets (2,126,688) (2,782,253)
Payment on Capital Debt and Leases (4,854,989) (4,771,480)
Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities (6,352,146) (7,553,733)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale and Maturity of Investments 9,441,083 14,711,017
Investment Earnings 62,548 105,005
Purchase of Investments (8,500,000) (9,611,460)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 1,003,631 5,204,562
Increasein Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,716,180 6,916,816
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Y ear 11,585,358 4,668,542
Cash and Cash Equivalents- End of Year $ 13,301,538 $ 11,585,358

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 3

2013 2012

Reconciliation of Operating | ncome (L oss) to Net Cash

Flowsfrom Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) $  (26,972,229) $  (26,296,470)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Flows from Operating Activities

Depreciation 2,047,191 1,990,328
State-Paid Employee Benefits 1,467,806 1,427,015
Changein Assets and Liabilities
Receivables (net) (18,482) 381,900
Prepaid Expenses 4,059 (12,370)
Inventories for Resale (7,157) (38,553)
Escrow Deposit for Sewer Line 646,671 -
Accounts Payable (262,089) (96,415)
Accrued Liabilities (4,114) (34,200)
Deferred Revenues 143,390 557,979
Deposits Payable (1,800) (3,325)
Total Adjustments 4,015,475 4,173,359
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities $  (22,956,754) $  (22,123,111)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Grayson College
Affiliated Organizations
Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

Grayson College Foundation, Inc.

2013 2012

Cash Flows from Oper ating Activities

Change in Net Position $ 1,528,016 $ 1,210,541
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Position to Net Cash

Flows from Operating Activities:

Depreciation 29,202 29,202
Net (Gains) Losses on Investments (333,666) (373,762)
Non-Cash Gifts Received (800,000) -
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accrued Interest Receivable 154 242
Accounts Payable (3,001) (5,454)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 420,705 860,769
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investments (1,382,884) (3,419,612)
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 1,180,240 2,690,425
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (202,644) (729,187)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities - -

Net Increasein Cash 218,061 131,582
Cash - Beginning of Year 750,293 618,711
Cash - End of Year $ 968,354 $ 750,293

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Gift of Investment Property $ 800,000 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1- REPORTING ENTITY

Grayson College (College) was established in 1963, in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, to serve the educational
needs of Grayson County and the surrounding areas. The Board of Trustees (Board), a seven-member group, has governance
responsibilitiesover all activitiesrelated to the College. The Board has decision-making authority, the authority to levy taxes, the
power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operationsand primary accountability for fiscal mattersof the
College.

Generally accepted accounting principles, as established by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), defines the
financial reporting entity as consisting of (1) the primary government; (2) organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable; and (3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. A
primary government isfinancially accountabl e for those organizationsif the primary government appoints avoting majority of an
organization’'s governing body, and either can impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

The College is considered to be a special purpose, primary government according to these standards. Although the College
receives funding from local, state and federal agencies and must comply with the spending, reporting and recordkeeping
requirements of these entities, it isnot acomponent unit of any other governmental entity. One organization, the Grayson College
Foundation (Foundation) meetsthe criteriaof GASB pronouncements and has been presented as a discrete component unit of the
College (see Note 17).

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Guidelines

The College preparesitsfinancial statementsin conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to governmental units in conjunction with the Annual Financial Reporting Requirements for Texas Public
Community and Junior Collegesissued by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (Coordinating Board). The College
appliesall GASB pronouncements. The Collegeisreported asaspecial-purpose government engaged in business-typeactivities.

The College adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, in the current year. This statement provides guidance for reporting deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. Deferred outflows of
resources are defined as a consumption of net assets by agovernment that is applicable to afuture reporting period and deferred
inflows of resources are defined as an acquisition of net assets by agovernment that isapplicableto afuture reporting period. Net
position is defined as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position, being measured as the
difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resourcesand (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The College
has no items that qualify for reporting as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources; accordingly, those
captions are not included on the Statement of Net Position in these financial statements.

The College presentsits net position (or equity) into the following three components:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This component consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding debt that is attributableto the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted — This component includes those assets upon which constraints have been placed on their utilization. Such
congtraints may be placed externally (by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regul ations of other governments)
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legidation.

Unrestricted — This component representsthe net position that isavailablefor useto fulfill the educational purposes of

the College. It includes all net position that are not classified as “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or
“restricted.”
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Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Basisof Accounting

Thefinancial statements of the College are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal or
contractual obligationto pay. Grantsand similar items are recognized asrevenue as soon asall eligibility requirementsimposed
by the provider have been met.

C. Revenue Classifications

The College distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenuesand expensesgenerally
result from providing servicesin connection with the College’ sprincipal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenuesare
tuition and related fees. Operating revenuesinclude chargesfor servicesand program-specific grantsand contributions. Charges
for servicesinclude assessmentsto students and otherswho purchase, use or directly benefit fromthe goods, servicesor privileges
provided. Revenuesin this category include tuition and fees, and sales of auxiliary or educational activities. Program-specific
grants and contributions arise from nonexchange transactions with other governments, organizations or individuals that are
restricted for usein aparticular program. Revenuesin this category include program-specific grants and contracts with federal,
state and other organizations, and investment income restricted to a specific program.

Non-operating revenues include all revenues that are not classified as operating revenues as discussed above. Revenuesin this
category include state allocations, property taxes and grants, contributions and investment earnings that are not restricted to a
specific program.

D. Tuition Discounting

Texas Public Education Grants— Certain tuition amounts are required to be set aside for use as scholarshipsby qualifying students.
This set aside, called the Texas Public Education Grant (TPEG) is shown with tuition and fee revenue amounts as a separate set
aside amount (Texas Education Code §56.033). When the award isused by the student for tuition and fees, the amount isrecorded
as atuition discount. If the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.

Title IV, Higher Education Act Program Funds— Certain Title [V HEA Program funds are received by the Collegeto passthrough
to the student. Thesefundsareinitially received by the College and recorded asrevenue. When the award is used by the student
for tuition and fees, the amount isrecorded as atuition discount. |f the amount isdispersed directly to the student, the amount is
recorded as a scholarship expense.

Texas Grants— Texas Grant funds are received by the College to passthrough to the student. Thesefundsareinitialy received by
the College and recorded as revenue. When the award is used by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as a
tuition discount. If the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.

Other Tuition Discounts— The College awardstuition and fee schol arships frominstitutional fundsto studentswho qualify. When
these amounts are used for tuition and fees, the amount isrecorded asatuition discount. 1f theamount isdispersed directly to the
student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense.

E. Budgetary Data

Each community college in Texas is required by law to prepare an annual operating budget of anticipated revenues and
expendituresfor thefiscal year beginning September 1. The College’ sBoard of Trustees adoptsthe budget, whichis prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting except that depreciation expenseisnot budgeted. A copy of the approved budget and subsequent
amendments must be filed with the Coordinating Board, L egislative Budget Board, L egidative Reference Library, and Governor’s
Office of Budget and Planning by December 1.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The College' s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand and time deposit accounts, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Investments

The College's investments are reported at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. The information for determining the fair value of
investmentsis derived from published sources, if available, and from professional investment advisors. Short-term investments
have an original maturity greater than three months but less than one year at thetime of purchase. Public fundsinvestment pools
are also considered to be short-terminvestments. Long-terminvestments have an original maturity of greater than one year at the
time of purchase.

H. Property Taxes

The College' s property tax islevied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and business
personal property located within the taxing district of the College. The assessed value of the roll on January 1, 2012, was
$10,359,392,000. Exemptions and abatements of $3,175,512,000 are allowed, resulting in a taxable value of $7,183,880,000.
The tax levy of $12,557,458 is the result of multiplying the value of the tax roll by the tax rates set by the Board. The tax rates
assessed for the year ended August 31, 2013 to finance Unrestricted Current Fund operations and debt service for general
obligation bonds were $0.130600 and $0.051200 per $100 valuation, respectively.

Property tax collections during the year ended August 31, 2013 were $12,216,152 for current taxes, $285,893 for delinquent taxes,
and $249,701 for penalties, interest and attorney fees. Tax collections for the year ended August 31, 2013 were 100% of the
current tax levy. Other taxes (from non-property sources) collected during the year ended August 31, 2013 totaled $85,588.

Property taxes are due on October 1 each year and become delinquent on February 1. The allowance for uncollectible taxesis
based upon historical experience of the College.

I. Inventories
Goods held for resale by the College's auxiliary enterprises as of August 31, 2013 and 2012 are recorded as inventory. The
inventory items are valued at cost or estimated cost calculated as a percentage of retail.

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The
College' scapitalization policy includesreal or personal property with avalue equal to or greater than $5,000 and has an estimated
life of greater than two years. The costs of normal maintenance and repairsthat do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the assets' lives are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense is incurred. The College reports
depreciation under a single-line item as a business-type unit. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The following lives are used:

Buildings 50 years
Facilities and Other |mprovements 20 years
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles and Other Equipment 10 years
Telecommunications and Peripheral Equipment 5years
Library Books 15 years

The College does not own any collections and has not adopted any specific policies in regard to accounting for collections.

K. Deferred Revenues
Tuition, fees and other revenues received and related to future periods have been deferred.

L. Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptionsthat affect certain reported amountsand disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ fromthose
estimates.
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Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M. Income Taxes

The College is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, Income of Sates, Municipalities, Etc.,
although unrelated business income may be subject to income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 511 (a)(2)(B),
Imposition of Tax on Unrelated Business Income of Charitable, Etc. Organizations. The College had no unrelated business
income tax liability for the year ended August 31, 2013.

N. Restricted Resour ces
When the College incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it usesthe restricted assets first
unless unrestricted assets will have to be returned because they were not used.

NOTE 3- AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

Authorized Investments

The College is authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as defined in the Public Funds Investment Act (Section
2256.001 Texas Government Code). These investments include (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies, (2) direct
obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, (3) obligations of political subdivisions rated not less than A by a national
investment rating firm, (4) certificates of deposit, and (5) other instruments or obligations authorized by statute.

The Foundation, as a nonprofit organization, is not subject to the Public Funds Investment Act. Asaresult, the Foundation can
and doesinvest in other types of investments, including corporate equities, corporate debt instruments, mutua fundsand common
investment trusts investing in corporate equities and debt, and land and other property.

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Deposits
Cash and Depositsat August 31, 2013 and 2012, asreported on the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit 1), consist of thefollowing
items:;

2013 2012
Petty Cash $ 4,220 $ 4,220
Bank Deposits:
Demand Accounts 13,297,318 11,581,138
Time and Savings Accounts 8,745,798 492,689
Total Cash and Deposits $ 22,047,336 $ 12,078,047

Custodial credit risk for depositsisthe risk that in the event of abank failure, the College's deposits may not be returned or the
College will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The College's policy requires
depositsto be 100% secured by collateral valued at market less the amount of the Federal Deposit I nsurance Corporation (FDIC)
insurance. At August 31, 2013 and 2012, the College' s deposits are not exposed to custodial credit risk.

I nvestments
The following schedule summarizes the College’ s investments as of August 31, 2013:

Credit Investment Maturities (in Y ears)
Type of Security Fair Vaue Rating Lessthan 1 lto2Years Morethan?2
Investment Pools $ 6,428,242 AAA $ 6428242 % - $ -
Tota Investments $ 6,428,242 $ 6428242 % - % -
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Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

I nvestments (Continued)
The following schedule summarizes the College' s investments as of August 31, 2012;

Credit Investment Maturities (in Y ears)
Type of Security Fair Value Rating Lessthan 1 lto2Years Morethan?2
Investment Pools $ 15,622,434 AAA $ 15,622,434 % - % -
Total Investments $ 15,622,434 $ 15,622,434 $ - $ -

Credit riskistherisk that aninsurer or other counterparty to aninvestment will not fulfill itsobligations. Inaccordancewith State
law and the College’ sinvestment policy, investmentsin mutual funds and external poolsmust berated at least AAA, commercial
paper must be rated at least A-1 or P-1, and investments in obligations from other states, municipalities, counties, etc. must be
rated at least A.

Custodial credit risk for investmentsistherisk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the College will not be ableto
recover the value of itsinvestments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party.

Interest rateriskistherisk that changesininterest rateswill adversely affect thefair value of aninvestment. Investmentsheld for
longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverseinterest rate changes. The College’ spolicy providesthat investmentsto be
purchased must have final maturities of five years or less.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the College’sinvestmentsin asingleissuer. The
College's policy does not place a limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer. This risk does not apply to U.S.
Government securities or investmentsin an external investment pool. At August 31, 2013 and 2012, the College did not have a
concentration of credit risk in itsinvestment portfolio.

The Public Funds Investment Act (discussed on previous pages) a so requires the College to have independent auditors perform
test proceduresrel ated to investment practices as prescribed by that legislation. The Collegeisin substantial compliancewiththe
requirements of the Public Funds Investment Act.

Reconciliation
The following table reconciles Deposits and | nvestments presented with this note and amounts reported in the Statement of Net
Position (Exhibit 1):

2013 2012
Cash and Deposits $ 22,047,336 $ 12,078,047
I nvestments 6,428,242 15,622,434
Total Deposits and Investments $ 28,475,578 $ 27,700,481
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Exhibit 1) $ 13,301,538 $ 11,585,358
Short-Term Investments (Exhibit 1) 8,265,949 15,864,622
Other Long-Term Investments (Exhibit 1) 6,908,091 250,501
Total Deposits and Investments $ 28,475,578 $ 27,700,481
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Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012
NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the changes in the College's capital assets during the year ended August 31, 2013 is shown below:

Balance Balance
Sept. 1, 2012 Additions Retirements August 31, 2013
Not Depreciated
Land $ 1,251,740 $ - $ - $ 1,251,740
Construction in Progress 178,045 2,383,692 - 2,561,737
Total - Not Depreciated 1,429,785 2,383,692 - 3,813,477
Other Capital Assets
Buildings and | mprovements 67,175,885 - 71,900 67,103,985
Facilities and Other Improvements 6,829,202 35,650 20,000 6,844,852
Furniture, VVehicles and
Other Equipment 6,682,351 307,488 67,391 6,922,448
Library Books 1,094,211 28,481 - 1,122,692
Subtotal 81,781,649 371,619 159,291 81,993,977
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and |mprovements 7,364,057 1,208,518 51,768 8,520,807
Facilities and Other Improvements 1,993,788 281,879 12,600 2,263,067
Furniture, Vehicles and
Other Equipment 4,090,387 516,323 67,391 4,539,319
Library Books 799,062 40,471 - 839,533
Subtotal 14,247,294 2,047,191 131,759 16,162,726
Net - Other Capital Assets 67,534,355 (1,675,572 27,532 65,831,251
Totals $ 68,964,140 $ 708,120 $ 27,532 $ 69,644,728

A summary of the changes in the College's capital assets during the year ended August 31, 2012 is shown below:

Balance Balance
Sept. 1, 2011 Additions Retirements August 31, 2012
Not Depreciated
Land $ 1,251,740 $ - $ - $ 1,251,740
Construction in Progress 2,134,513 1,690,983 3,647,451 178,045
Total - Not Depreciated 3,386,253 1,690,983 3,647,451 1,429,785
Other Capital Assets
Buildings and | mprovements 63,516,159 3,659,726 - 67,175,885
Facilities and Other Improvements 6,618,855 210,347 - 6,829,202
Furniture, Vehiclesand
Other Equipment 6,078,299 604,052 - 6,682,351
Library Books 1,057,961 36,250 - 1,094,211
Subtotal 77,271,274 4,510,375 - 81,781,649
Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and |mprovements 6,187,830 1,176,227 - 7,364,057
Facilities and Other Improvements 1,716,236 277,552 - 1,993,788
Furniture, Vehicles and
Other Equipment 3,594,758 495,629 - 4,090,387
Library Books 758,142 40,920 - 799,062
Subtotal 12,256,966 1,990,328 - 14,247,294
Net - Other Capital Assets 65,014,308 2,520,047 - 67,534,355
Totals $ 68,400,561 $ 4,211,030 $ 3,647,451 $ 68,964,140
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Grayson College

Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Construction in Progress

Asof August 31, 2013, the College isinvolved in planning and design phase for the construction of a Career and Technology
Center for the College’s South Campus. Estimated total cost for this project is approximately $4,000,000. Contracts for
construction and architectural services have been executed totaling approximately $3,942,000, of which approximately $2,297,000
wasincurred through August 31, 2013. The College expectsthe remainder of the costs of this project to beincurred by August 31,

2014.

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Details of the College’ s receivables, including the allowance for uncollectible amounts, as of August 31, 2013 and 2012 are as

follows:

Accounts Receivable
Tuition and Fees Receivable
Property Taxes Receivable
Interest Receivable

Loans Receivable

Federal Receivables

State Receivables

Total Receivables

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Totals

NOTE 7- LONG-TERM DEBT

2013 2012
$ 64337 $ 51,297
1,226,751 978,233
827,139 843,840
2,493 451
30,743 30,743
680,811 224,587
99,162 168,530
2,931,436 2,297,681
(1,175,252) (1,029,136)

$ 1,756,184 $ 1,268,545

Thefollowing schedule summarizesthe changesin thelong-term indebtedness of the College for the year ended August 31, 2013:

General Obligations Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Unamortized Premium on Bonds
Deferred Bonds Payable
Total Bonds Payable
Notes and Capital L eases Payable
Total Bonds and Notes Payable
Compensated Absences
Totals

Balance Balance Due Within
Sept. 1, 2012 Additions Retirements  August 31, 2013 One Year
$ 40,720,000 $ - $ 1575000 $ 39,145,000 $ 1,690,000

12,995,000 - 1,095,000 11,900,000 1,120,000

1,564,523 - 110,307 1,454,216 -

(656,376) - (51,909) (604,467) (54,092)
54,623,147 - 2,728,398 51,894,749 2,755,908
179,980 - 38,638 141,342 40,782
54,803,127 - 2,767,036 52,036,091 2,796,690
182,546 216,267 202,421 196,392 39,278
$54985673 $ 216267 $ 2969457 $ 52,232,483 $ 2,835,968

-22-



Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Thefollowing schedule summarizesthe changesin thelong-term indebtedness of the College for the year ended August 31, 2012:

Balance Balance Due Within
Sept. 1, 2011 Additions Retirements  August 31, 2012 One Year

General Obligations Bonds $ 42,155,000 $ - $ 1,435,000 $ 40,720,000 $ 1,575,000
Revenue Bonds 14,065,000 - 1,070,000 12,995,000 1,095,000
Unamortized Premium on Bonds 1,674,830 - 110,307 1,564,523 -
Deferred Bonds Payable (706,344) - (49,968) (656,376) (51,909)
Total Bonds Payable 57,188,486 - 2,565,339 54,623,147 2,618,091
Notes and Capital Leases Payable 216,505 - 36,525 179,980 38,638
Total Bonds and Notes Payable 57,404,991 - 2,601,864 54,803,127 2,656,729
Compensated Absences 178,723 206,783 202,960 182,546 36,049
Totas $57583714 $ 206,783 $ 2,804,824  $ 54,985,673 $ 2,692,778

Bonds Payable
The College has the following bond issues outstanding as of August 31, 2013:

On November 27, 2007, the College issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 in the amount of $9,630,000 for the
purposes of renovating, constructing and equipping College buildings. These bonds are payable from a continuing direct
annual ad valorem tax levied by the College on all taxable property to provide for the payment of principal and interest.
Principal paymentsfrom $300,000 to $695,000 are due beginning on August 15, 2009 through 2029. Semiannual interest
payments at interest rates ranging from 4% to 5% are due beginning February 15, 2009. The balance outstanding on this
bond issue as of August 31, 2013 is $8,330,000.

On January 22, 2008, the College issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008 in the amount of $35,135,000 for the
purposes of renovating, constructing and equipping College buildings. These bonds are payable from acontinuing direct
annual ad valorem tax levied by the College on all taxable property to provide for the payment of principal and interest.
Principa payments from $100,000 to $2,600,000 are due beginning on August 15, 2009 through 2029. Semiannual
interest payments at interest rates ranging from 3.375% to 5% are due beginning February 15, 2009. The balance
outstanding on this bond issue as of August 31, 2013 is $30,815,000.

On October 1, 2010, the College issued Consolidated Fund Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 in the amount of
$15,215,000 for the purpose of advance refunding of $15,560,000 of the College’ srevenue bonds (Series 2002, 2003 and
2004). Variousrevenues, including tuition, general usefeesand gross revenues of the College’ sauxiliary enterprises, are
pledged for the debt service of the bonds. Principal paymentsfrom $605,000 to $1,300,000 are due beginning August 15,
2011 through 2024. Semiannual interest payments ranging from 2% to 4% are due beginning February 15, 2011. The
balance outstanding on this bond issue as of August 31, 2013 is $11,900,000.
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)
The principal and interest requirements related to the bonded indebtedness are listed below:

Y ear Ended Genera Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Total Requirements
August 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 $ 1,690,000 $ 1,637,105 $ 1,120,000 $ 421,200 $ 2,810,000 $ 2,058,305
2015 1,885,000 1,574,136 1,140,000 398,800 3,025,000 1,972,936
2016 1,955,000 1,504,261 1,035,000 364,600 2,990,000 1,868,861
2017 2,030,000 1,429,761 1,065,000 333,550 3,095,000 1,763,311
2018 2,105,000 1,352,336 1,100,000 301,600 3,205,000 1,653,936
2019 - 2023 11,775,000 5,513,631 5,835,000 808,000 17,610,000 6,321,631
2024 - 2028 14,410,000 2,883,989 605,000 24,200 15,015,000 2,908,189
2029 - 2033 3,295,000 159,190 -- -- 3,295,000 159,190
Total $ 39,145,000 $ 16,054,410 $ 11,900,000 $ 2,651,950 $ 51,045,000 $ 18,706,360

Advance Refunding / Bonds Payable - Deferred

In prior years, the College defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bondsin anirrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the assets of the trust account and liabilities for the defeased bonds
are not included in the College’s financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 23, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Refundings of Debt by Proprietary Activities, the difference between the book value of the old debt and the amount
required to retire the debt is deferred and is not reported on the statement of activities.

Thisdeferral isamortized over the original life of the old bondsor the life of the new bonds, whichever isless. Amortization of the
deferred bonds payable will be as follows:

Y ear Ending August 31,

2014 $ 54,002

2015 56,032

2016 51,423

2017 53,606

2018 55,790

2019 - 2023 299,566

2024 - 2028 33,958

Total $ 604,467

Asof August 31, 2013, all of the defeased bonds have been retired.

Notes and Capital L eases Payable

OnMay 3, 2011, the College executed atax-exempt equipment | ease with PNC Equipment Finance LL C for the acquisition of golf
course equipment (golf cars). This note bears interest at the rate of 10.67% and is payable in monthly installments of $2,711,
including principal and interest, beginning July 3, 2011 through June 3, 2015. On July 3, 2015, a final balloon payment of
$50,000 is due to retire the balance of the note. The value of the equipment purchased under this lease totaled $155,550.
Amortization of these assetsis included with depreciation expense.

On June 21, 2011, the College executed a tax-exempt equipment lease with PNC Equipment Finance LLC for the acquisition of
golf course equipment (mowers and utility vehicle). This note bears interest at the rate of 5.29% and is payable in monthly
installments of $1,274, including principal and interest, beginning July 21, 2011 through June 21, 2016. The value of the
equipment purchased under this lease totaled $67,146. Amortization of these assets isincluded with depreciation expense.
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Notes and Capital L eases Payable (Continued)
The following table shows the debt service requirements for these equipment leases.

PNC Equipment Finance LLC

Y ear Ended August 31, Golf Cars Equipment Total

2014 $ 32,532 $ 15,285 $ 47,817

2015 77,110 15,285 92,395

2016 - 12,737 12,737

Thereafter - - -

Total Debt Service 109,642 43,307 152,949
Less Interest Portion (8,374) (3,233) (11,607)
Notes and Leases Payable $ 101,268 $ 40,074 $ 141,342

Interest Expense
During the year ended August 31, 2013, the College incurred interest costs of $2,159,643 on its bonds, notes and capital leases
payable. This entire amount was charged to expense.

During the year ended August 31, 2012, the College incurred interest costs of $2,241,574 on its bonds, notes and capital leases
payable. Of thisamount, $2,226,909 was charged to expense and $14,670 was capitalized as acomponent of construction costs.
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (SFAS 62, Capitalization of Interest Cost in Stuations Involving
Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowingsand Certain Giftsand Grants, and FASB Accounting Standards Codification 835, Interest), the
College reduced the amount of capitalized interest by the investment earnings of the related tax-exempt borrowings ($3,209). Asa
result, the College has capitalized $11,461 in net interest costs with its capital assets during the year ended August 31, 2012.

Compensated Absences

The sole component of the compensated absencesliability asof August 31, 2013 isaccrued annual (vacation) leavefor employees.
See Note 9 for fuller discussion. Thisobligation will be paid by the fund or department for which the employee worksat thetime
of utilization. Asof August 31, 2013, $189,501 isexpected to be paid by the Current Unrestricted Fund and $6,891 isexpected to
be paid by the College's auxiliary enterprises. The College believes that approximately $39,278 of thisliability will be paid to
employees during the year ending August 31, 2013 and, accordingly, has classified that portion of the liability as a current
obligation. The balance of the liability ($157,114) is considered long-term.

NOTE 8- EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for aimost al its employees. One of the primary plans in which the
College participates is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas.

Teacher Retirement System of Texas

Plan Description. The College contributesto the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit pension plan. TRS administers retirement and disability annuities and death and survivor benefits to employees
and beneficiaries of employees of the public school systems of Texas. It operates primarily under the provisions of the Texas
Congtitution, Article XV, Section 67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The Texas state legidature has the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the pension plan. TRS issues a publicly available financial report with
required supplementary information which can be obtained from www.trs.state.tx.us, under the TRS Publications heading.
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NOTE 8- EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Teacher Retirement System of Texas (Continued)

Funding Policy. Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by the Texas state
legidature. The state funding policy is as follows. (1) The state constitution requires the legisature to establish a member
contribution rate of not lessthan 6% of the member’ sannual compensation and a state contribution rate of not |essthan 6% and not
more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation of al members of the system; (2) A state statute prohibits benefit
improvements or contribution reductionsif, asaresult of aparticular action, thetimerequired to amortize TRS' unfunded actuarial
liabilitieswould be increased to a period that exceeds 31 years, or, if the amortization period already exceeds 31 years, the period
would beincreased by such action. Statelaw providesfor amember contribution rate of 6.4% for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 and
a state contribution rate of 6.4% and 6.0% for the 2013 and 2012 fiscal years, respectively. In certain instances, the Collegeis
required to make all or a portion of the state’ s contribution for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

Optional Retirement Plan

Plan Description. The State hasal so established an optional retirement program for ingtitutions of higher education. Participation
inthe Optional Retirement Programisinlieu of participation in the Teacher Retirement System. Theoptional retirement program
providesfor the purchase of annuity contracts and operates under the provisions of the Texas Constitution, Article XV, Section
67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C.

Funding Policy. Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by the Texas state
legislature. The percentages of participant salaries currently contributed by the State and each participant are 6.4% and 6.55%,
respectively. The College contributes 1.31% for employees who were participating in the optional retirement program prior to
September 1, 1995. Benefitsfully vest after one year plus one day of employment. Becausethese areindividual annuity contracts,
the State has no additional or unfunded liability for this program.

The retirement expense to the state for the College was $600,847 and $604,378 for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The retirement paid by the State represents the expended appropriations made by the State L egislature on
behalf of the College and are recorded as State Appropriationsin the financial statements.

The total payroll for al College employees was $14,207,878 and $14,097,261 for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The total payroll for employees covered by the TRS was $7,810,279 and $7,332,192 and the total payroll for
employees covered by the optional retirement program was $3,764,052 and $4,168,691 for thefiscal yearsended August 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

NOTE 9- COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Full-time empl oyees who work twelve months during the year are allowed to accumulate annual leave based upon the number of
hours required for the workweek and the number of years employed at the College. For employees with a 35-hour regular
workweek, six (6) hours per month are accrued for those employees with less than 15 years of service and nine (9) hours are
accrued per month with more than 15 years of service. For employees with a 40-hour regular workweek, seven (7) hours per
month are accrued for those employeeswith lessthan 15 years of service and 10 hours per month are accrued with morethan 15 or
more years of service, 9 hours of annual leave are accrued. The maximum number of hoursthat may be carried forward to the next
fiscal year is 105 and120 for employees with 35-hour and 40-hour workweeks, respectively. A calculated percentageisapplied to
part-time contractual employees to determine their accrual rates.

Full-time hourly employees with less than 15 years of employment are allowed to accumulate annual leave at the rate of four
percent of regular hours worked. Full-time hourly employeeswith 15 or more years of service have an accumulation rate of six
percent of regular hoursworked. The maximum number of hoursthat may be carried forward to the next fiscal year is 105for this
group of employees. One-half of vacation leave accrued during afiscal year must be utilized during that year for all employees
that are eligible to accrue vacation.

The College has recognized the accrued liability for the unpaid annual leave in the fund in which the employee works. Accrued

compensated absences payable of $196,392 and $182,546 isrecorded in the financia statementsasof August 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. These amounts are payable to the employees (or their beneficiaries) upon termination or death.
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NOTE 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

Full-time employees who work twelve months during the year are allowed to accumulate sick leave based upon the number of
hoursrequired for theworkweek. Six (6) hours per month are accrued for employeeswith a 35-hour regular workweek and seven
(7) hours per month are accrued for employees with a 40-hour regular workweek. Sick leave for instructional employees with
nine-month or ten-and-one-half month contractsis accrued over aten-month period. Full-time hourly employeesare allowed to
accumulate sick leave at the rate of four percent of regular hours worked. Full-time instructional employees shall accrue a
maximum of 400 hours. Full-time noninstructional employees may accrue amaximum of 420 hours for those employees whose
regular workweek is 35 hours and 480 hoursfor those employees whose regular workweek is40 hours. A calculated percentageis
applied to part-time employees to determine their accrual rates. The College's policy isto recognize sick leave when paid. No
liability has beenrecorded inthefinancia statements since the College’ sexperience indicatesthe expenditurefor sick leaveto be
minimal.

Additionally, the College has established asick leave pool to benefit employeeswho suffer or are affected by acatastrophic injury
or illness. Employees may contribute up to ten percent of accumulated sick leaveto the pool. Receipt of benefitsfromthe pool is
not contingent upon prior contributions. A committee of College personnel makes benefit payment decisions. No liability for the
sick leave pool has been recorded in these financial statements.

NOTE 10 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM

College employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment purposes pursuant to authority
granted in Government Code 609.001.

NOTE 11 - PENDING LAWSUITSAND CLAIMS
Asof August 31, 2013, there are no material lawsuits and claims pending or threatened against the College.
NOTE 12 - CONTRACT AND GRANT AWARDS

Contract and grant awards are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of the AICPA Industry Audit Guide, Audits of
Collegesand Universities. Revenues are recognized on Exhibit 2 and Schedule A. For federal contract and grant awards, funds
expended, but not collected, are reported as Federal Receivables on Exhibit 1. Non-federal contract and grant awardsfor which
funds are expended, but not collected, are reported as Accounts Receivable on Exhibit 1. Contract and grant awardsthat are not
yet funded and for which the institution has not yet performed services are not included in thefinancial statements. Contract and
grant awards funds already committed, e.g., multi-year awards, or funds awarded during fiscal years August 31, 2013 and 2012 for
which monies have not been received nor funds expended totaled $1,374,866 and $885,118, respectively. Of these amounts,
$1,052,633 and $522,039 were from Federal Contract and Grant Awards; $277,415 and $363,079 were from State Contract and
Grant Awards; and $44,818 and $0 were from Other Contract and Grant Awards for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

The College receives a portion of its revenues from government grants and contracts, all of which are subject to audit by federal
and state agencies. The determination of amountsreceived under these programs generally isbased upon allowable costsreported
to and audited by the respective agencies. As aresult, there exists a contingency to refund any amount received in excess of
allowable costs. The amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined at this
time, although the College expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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NOTE 13- RISK MANAGEMENT

The Collegeisexposed to variousrisks of lossrelated to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errorsand omissions,
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Except for workers compensation insurance, the College carries commercial
insurance for all risks of loss. The College accounts for risk management issues in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues.

The College participates in the Workers' Compensation Fund of the Texas Public Junior and Community College Employee
Benefits Consortium (Fund) administered by Claims Administrative Services, Inc. The Collegeisresponsiblefor the payment of
all claimsuntil acertain threshold isreached. Whenever the claims exceed the threshold, acommercial insurance policy paysthe
excess claims. The Fund' s specific retention of lossis $200,000, with an aggregate limit of $5,000,000; the College’ s maximum
fund loss is $109,450. Premiums of $30,707 and $31,531 for thisinsurance were allocated to the College for the years ended
August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following schedule summarizes the changes in claims liabilities for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Claims Liabilities - Beginning of Year $ 98,030 $ 136,053
Incurred Claims 22,358 33,631
Changein Prior Year Claim Estimates (20,484) (27,412)
Payment on Claims (19,834) (44,242)
Claims Liabilities - End of Year $ 80,070 $ 98,030

The claims liability is reported in accrued liabilities in the financia statements and includes $36,788 and $45,697 of estimated
claimsincurred but not reported, as determined actuarially by the administrator at August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

NOTE 14 - POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Plan Description. The College contributes to the State Retiree Health Plan (SRHP), a cost-sharing multiple-employer, defined
benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the Employees Retirement System of Texas (ERS). SRHP provides
medical benefits to retired employees of participating universities, community colleges and state agencies in accordance with
Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code. Benefit and contribution provisions of the SRHP are authorized by State law and may be
amended by the Texas legidature.

ERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
SRHP. That report may be obtained from ERS viatheir website at http://www.ers.state.tx.us/.

Funding Policy. Section 1551.055 of Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code provides that contribution requirements of plan
members and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the ERS board of trustees. Plan members or
beneficiaries receiving benefits pay any premium over and above the employer contribution.

The employer’ s share of the cost of retiree healthcare coverage for the current year isknown astheimplicit rate subsidy. Itisthe
difference between the claims costs for retirees and the amounts contributed by the retirees. The ERS board of trustees setsthe
employer contribution rate based on theimplicit rate subsidy, whichisactuarially determined in accordance with GASB Statement
45.

The employer contribution rate represents alevel of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The College’ s contributionsto SRHP for the years ended August 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $120,664, $77,520 and $79,289,
respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year.

- 28 -



Grayson College
Notesto the Financial Statements
August 31, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 15- NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

GASB hasissued its Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assetsand Liabilities. Thisstatement establishesaccounting
and financial reporting guidance that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items
that were previously reported asassets or liabilities. This statement also provides other financial reporting guidancerelated to the
impact of thefinancial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such aschangesinthe
determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term “deferred” in financial statement presentations.
Additionally, the statement al so eliminated the presentation of certain itemsthat were previously reported as assets or liabilities.
The College will adopt this statement in itsfiscal year beginning September 1, 2013. The College believes the adoption of this
statement will reduce its net position (or equity) by approximately $1,060,000 with the elimination of bond issuance costs as a
recognized asset in the College’s financial statements.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No events have occurred subsequent to August 31, 2013 that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, these financial
statements.

NOTE 17 - GRAYSON COLLEGE FOUNDATION - DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT

The Foundation was established as a separate nonprofit organization in 1991 to raise funds to provide student scholarships and
assistance in the development and growth of the College. Under GASB standards, the Foundation is a component unit of the
College because: 1) the College providesfinancia resourcesto the Foundation and the economic resourcesreceived or held by the
Foundation are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the College; 2) the College is entitled to or has the ability to
otherwise accessamajority of the economic resourcesreceived or held by the Foundation; and 3) the economic resources held by
the Foundation that the Collegeis entitled or has the ability to otherwise access are significant to the College.

Accordingly, the Foundation’ sfinancial statements areincluded in the College' s annual report as a discrete component unit (see
table of contents). Separatefinancial statements of the Foundation are not prepared; therefore, selected disclosuresareincludedin
the College' sfinancial statements.

GENERAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Thefinancial statements of the Foundation have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Foundation maintainsits accounts in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. Resourcesfor various purposes are
classified into fundsthat arein accordance with activities or obj ectives specified by donors. Separate accounts are maintained for
each fund. For reporting purposes, however, the Foundation classifies net position and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses based
on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net position of the Foundation and changestherein are
classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted —Net position that isnot subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be used for any operating purpose
of the Foundation.

Temporarily Restricted — Net position that i s subject to donor-imposed stipul ationsthat require the passage of timeand
/ or the occurrence of a specific event.

Permanently Restricted — Net position that is required to be maintained in perpetuity, with only the income used for
operating activities, due to donor-imposed restrictions.
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GENERAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I nvestments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investmentsin debt securities are reported at
their fair valuesin the statement of financial position. The carrying amountsof other investments (real estate) are based upon the
historical cost of those investments. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reported in the statement of activities.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assetsarerecorded at cost or at estimated fair market value at the date of the gift if donated. Such donationsare reported as
unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with specific restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted
support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Foundation reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The
Foundation reclassifies temporarily restricted net position to unrestricted net position at that time.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful livesare
fifty years for buildings and improvements and ten years for equipment.

Contributions

Contributions are recognized asrevenuesin the period unconditional promisesto givearereceived. Conditional promisesto give
are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.
Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value.

Contributed Services

The services of the Foundation employees and certain operating costs have been donated by the College. The estimated value of
these contributed servicesis $220,237 and $206,929 for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and has been
included in revenues and expenses in the accompanying financial statements.

Federal Income Taxes

Theincome of the Foundation, except for unrelated businessincome, isexempt from federa incometaxesunder Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation had no unrelated business income during the years ended August 31, 2013 and
2012.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financia statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

INVESTMENTS
The following schedule summarizes the Foundation’ s investments as of August 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Type of Security Cost Fair Vaue Cost Fair Vaue
U.S. Government Securities $ 363,520 $ 361,285 $ 371,853 $ 385614
U.S. Government Agency Securities 144,403 142,351 165,629 168,634
Equity Securities 3,943,430 4,911,444 3,826,913 4,333,321
Corporate Obligations 1,813,703 1,737,411 1,631,446 1,699,898
Municipa Bonds 215,693 227,553 215,675 243,392
Real Estate 800,000 800,000 - -
Money Market and Investment Pools 1,199,690 1,197,427 1,214,062 1,210,301
Total Investments $ 8,480,439 $ 9,377,471 $ 7,425,578 $ 8,041,160
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NOTE 17 - GRAYSON COLLEGE FOUNDATION - DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT (Continued)

CAPITAL ASSETS
The following schedule summarizes the Foundation’s capital assets as of August 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

Land $ 506,000 $ 506,000
Buildings and Improvements 507,350 507,350
Facilities and Other Improvements 17,345 17,345
Equipment 192,893 192,893
Less:

Accumulated Depreciation (187,760) (158,558)
Net Capital Assets $ 1,035,828 $ 1,065,030

Land valued at $500,000 was gifted to the Foundation during the year ended August 31, 2009; thisland issubject to areversionary
clause if construction of an educational facility in Fannin County is not begun by January 1, 2014. On May 8, 2010, the Fannin
County electorate voted down aproposal to join the Grayson County Junior College District. Thisdecision of the voters makesit

unlikely that an educational facility will be built onthissite. The Foundation anticipatesthat the ownership of the land will revert
to the donor on January 1, 2014.
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Tuition
State Funded Courses
In-District Resident Tuition
Out-of-District Resident Tuition
Non-Resident Tuition
TPEG*
Non-State Funded Educational Programs
Total Tuition

Fees

General Fee
Student Service Fee
Laboratory Fee
Other

Total Fees

Scholarship Allowances and Discounts
Scholarship Allowances

Remissions and Exemptions

TPEG Allowances

Federal Grantsto Students

Other Federa Grants

State Grants to Students

Total Scholarship Allowances and Discounts

Total Net Tuition and Fees

Other Operating Revenues

Federa Grants and Contracts

State Grants and Contracts
Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts
Sales and Services of Educationa Activities
Other Operating Revenues

Total Other Operating Revenues

Auxiliary Enterprises

Residential Life (Net of Discounts of $234,075)
Bookstore (Net of Discounts of $1,570,092)
Golf Course

Total Net Auxiliary Enterprises

Total Operating Revenues

Grayson College
Schedule of Operating Revenues
Year Ended August 31, 2013
With M emorandum Totalsfor Year Ended August 31, 2012

Schedule A

Totd
Educational Auxiliary Totals

Unrestricted ~ Restricted Activities Enterprises 2013 2012
$3,682,855 $ $ 368285 $ - $ 368285 $ 4,237,878
2,136,197 2,136,197 - 2,136,197 2,155,096
292,061 292,061 - 292,061 317,534
375,042 375,042 - 375,042 412,197
74,079 74,079 74,079 106,765
6,560,234 - 6,560,234 - 6,560,234 7,229,470
845,190 845,190 - 845,190 915,186
- - 739,638 739,638 528,885
328,152 328,152 - 328,152 310,813
439,911 - 439,911 - 439,911 465,835
1,613,253 - 1,613,253 739,638 2,352,891 2,220,719
(287,411) (287,411) (20,070) (307,481) (295,766)
(257,090) (257,090) (4,342) (261,432 (173,284)
(291,821) (291,821) (7,381) (299,202) (282,711)
(2,528,440) (2,528,440) (287,657)  (2,816,097)  (3,109,534)
(14,419) (14,419) (1,303) (15,722) (2,949)
(111,461) (211,336) (322,797) (13,308) (336,105) (662,900)
(3,490,642) (211,336)  (3,701,978) (334,061)  (4,036,039)  (4,527,144)
4,682,845 (211,336) 4,471,509 405,577 4,877,086 4,923,045
47,230 1,198,209 1,245,439 - 1,245,439 1,833,206
- 999,128 999,128 - 999,128 1,365,458
- 282,291 282,291 - 282,291 247,106
51,123 51,123 - 51,123 49,346
198,261 630 198,891 1,392 200,283 180,954
296,614 2,480,258 2,776,872 1,392 2,778,264 3,676,070
- - - 364,372 364,372 246,988
- 1,162,976 1,162,976 1,121,704
- - - 332,149 332,149 332,137
- - 1,859,497 1,859,497 1,700,829
$4,979,459 $2,268,922 $ 7,248,381 $2,266,466 $ 9,514,847 $10,299,944
(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)

* |n accordance with Education Code 56.033, $375,042 of tuition was set aside for Texas Public Education Grants (TPEG).
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Grayson College
Schedule of Operating Expenses by Object

Year Ended August 31, 2013
With M emorandum Totalsfor Year Ended August 31, 2012

Operating Expenses

Schedule B

EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted
Instruction
Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance

of Plant

Total Unrestricted

Restricted
Instruction
Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance

of Plant

Scholarships and Fellowships
Total Restricted

Total Educational Activities
Auxiliary Enterprises

Depr eciation Expense
Buildings and Other

Improvements
Equipment and Furniture

Total

Benefits
Salaries State Local Other Totals

and Wages Benefits Benefits Expenses 2013 2012
$ 7,757,455 $ - $1,746859 $ 836,781 $10,341,095  $10,449,753
249,617 - 77,251 37,549 364,417 433,858
854,076 - 170,875 499,861 1,524,812 1,411,174
1,277,890 - 285,868 264,750 1,828,508 1,797,097
1,626,100 - 325,190 1,675,062 3,626,352 3,720,581
700,897 - 254,165 3,299,924 4,254,986 3,046,958
12,466,035 - 2,860,208 6,613,927 21,940,170 20,859,421
981,973 961,864 182,653 192,801 2,319,291 2,785,841
113,572 39,990 28,619 50,219 232,400 196,806
- 94,005 - - 94,005 100,985
151,902 157,407 - 79,881 389,190 358,178
- 179,030 - - 179,030 178,055
- 30,463 - 89,023 119,486 26,472
- - - 5,450,594 5,450,594 6,510,510
1,247,447 1,462,759 211,272 5,862,518 8,783,996 10,156,847
13,713,482 1,462,759 3,071,480 12,476,445 30,724,166 31,016,268
462,558 5,047 157,132 3,090,982 3,715,719 3,589,818
- - - 1,490,397 1,490,397 1,453,779
- - - 556,794 556,794 536,549
$14,176,040 $1,467,806 $3,228,612 $17,614,618 $36,487,076  $36,596,414
(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)
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Grayson College

Schedule of Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Year Ended August 31, 2013

With M emorandum Totalsfor Year Ended August 31, 2012

Schedule C

Auxiliary Totals
Unrestricted Restricted Enterprises 2013 2012
Non-Oper ating Revenues
State Appropriations
Education and General State Support $ 7,472,050 $ -8 - $ 7472050 $ 7,548,400
Drametic Enrollment Growth 27,117 - - 27,117 27,117
State Group Insurance - 866,959 - 866,959 822,637
State Retirement Matching - 600,847 - 600,847 604,378
Total State Appropriations 7,499,167 1,467,806 - 8,966,973 9,002,532
Ad-Vaorem Taxes for Mainteance and Operations 9,244,001 - - 9,244,001 9,445,550
Ad-Vaorem Taxes for General Obligation Bonds 3,578,686 - - 3,578,686 3,133,192
Federal Grants and Contracts, Non-Operating - 9,745,101 - 9,745,101 11,187,966
Investment Income (net of Investment Expenses) 63,343 1,247 - 64,590 92,886
Other - 66 - 66 -
Total Non-Oper ating Revenues 20,385,197 11,214,220 - 31,599,417 32,862,126
Non-Oper ating Expenses
Interest on Capital-Related Debt 2,159,643 - - 2,159,643 2,226,909
Loss of Disposition of Property 20,782 - - 20,782 -
Total Non-Oper ating Expenses 2,180,425 - - 2,180,425 2,226,909
Net Non-Operating Revenues $18,204,772  $11,214220 $ - $29,418992  $30,635,217
(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)
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Current Funds:
Unrestricted
Restricted
Auxiliary Enterprises
Loan Funds
Plant Funds:
Unexpended
Renewals and Replacements
Unexpended Bond Proceeds
Debt Service
Investment in Plant

Total Net Position - August 31, 2013
Total Net Position - August 31, 2012

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Grayson College
Schedule of Net Position by Source and Availability

Year Ended August 31, 2013
With M emorandum Totalsfor Year Ended August 31, 2012

Detail by Source

Schedule D

Available for Current Operations

Restricted Capital Assets,
Net of
Non- Depreciation &
Unrestricted Expendable Expendable Related Debt Total Yes No
$ 16,108,549 $ - $ - $ - $ 16,108,549 $ 16,108,549 $ -
- 572,126 - - 572,126 - 572,126
1,981,859 - - - 1,981,859 1,981,859 -
- 46,537 - - 46,537 - 46,537
5,747,705 - - - 5,747,705 5,747,705 -
1,814,956 - - - 1,814,956 1,814,956 -
- 662,202 - - 662,202 - 662,202
- 1,079,651 - - 1,079,651 - 1,079,651
- - - 18,669,846 18,669,846 - 18,669,846
25,653,069 2,360,516 - 18,669,846 46,683,431 25,653,069 21,030,362
(Exhibit 1)
25,106,840 2,713,288 - 15,297,786 43,117,914 25,106,840 18,011,074
(Exhibit 1)
$ 546,229 $ (352,772) $ - $ 3,372,060 $ 3,565,517 $ 546,229 $ 3,019,288
(Exhibit 2)
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Grayson College
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended August 31, 2013

Pass-Through
Federal Pass-Through Disbursements
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's and
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Labor
Direct Programs:

Community Based Job Training Grants 17.269 CB-20568-10-60-A-48 $ 187,578
Passed through Texas Workforce Commission:

WIA TitleV Incentive Grant 17.267 2913WSW006 30,337
Total U.S. Department of Labor 217,915
U.S. Small Business Administration
Passed through Dallas County Community College District:

Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 59.037 HQ-13-B-007 45,528

Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 59.037 1-603001-Z-0152 32,404

Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 59.037 HQ-13-B-007 21,454

Subtotal - Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 99,386
Total U.S. Small Business Administration 99,386
National Endowment for the Humanities
Direct Programs:

Arts Education in American Communities 45.024 12-5900-7001 10,000
Total National Endowment for the Humanities 10,000
U.S. Department of Education
Direct Programs:

Federal Supplemental Education

Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) * 84.007 60,993

Federal Workstudy Program * 84.033 104,855

Federal Pell Grant Program * 84.063 9,604,068

Direct Student Loans * 84.268 8,664,605
Passed through Texas Education Agency:

Adult Basic Education (Section 231) 2012-2013 84.002 134100017110461 279,065

English Literacy and Civics Education (Section 231) 2012-2013 84.002 134100087110473 125,144

Subtotal - Adult Basic Education 404,209
Passed through Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board:

Carl Perkins Vocational Education - Annual Application 84.048 134233 470,722
Tota U.S. Department of Education 19,309,452
U.S. Department of Commer ce
Direct Programs:

Public Works and Economic Development 11.300 08-01-04362 1,108,754
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 1,108,754
U.S. Department of Health and Human Ser vices
Passed through Texas Education Agency:

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 2012-2013 93.558 123625017110372 28,392
Tota U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 28,392

Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 20,773,899

* Indicates clustered programs.
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Schedule E

Note 1: Federal Assistance Reconciliation

Federal Grants and Contracts per Schedule A $ 1,245,439
Federal Grants and Contracts, Non-operating per Schedule C 9,745,101
Federal Grants and Contracts (Capital Grants) 1,108,754
Reconciling Items:
Federal Grants Revenue of Discrete Component Unit (CFDA #45.024) 10,000
Direct Student Loans 8,664,605
Total Federal Revenues per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 20,773,899

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies Used in Preparing the Schedule

The expenditures included in the schedule are reported for the College's fiscal year. Expenditure reports to funding agencies
are prepared on the award period basis. The expenditures reported represent funds which have been expended by the
College for the purposes of the award. The expenditures reported may not have been reimbursed by the funding agencies as
of the end of the fiscal year. Some amounts included in the schedule may differ from amounts used in preparation of the
basic financial statements. Separate accounts are maintained for the different awards to aid in the observance of limitations
and restrictions imposed by the funding agencies. The College has followed applicable guidelines issued by various entities
in the preparation of the schedule.

Note 3: Expenditures Not Subject to Single Audit

None

Note 4: Student Loans Processed and Administrative Costs Recovered - |f Not I ncluded in Schedule

Total Loans

Administrative  Processed and

Federal Grantor and CFDA Number New Loans Costs Admin. Costs
Program Name Processed Recovered Recovered

None
Note5: Nonmonetary Federal Assistance Received
None

Note 6: Amounts Passed-Through by the College

None
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Grayson College
Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
Year Ended August 31, 2013

Schedule F

Grant

Grantor Agency/ Contract
Program Title Number Expenditures
Passed through Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

College Work Study Program (2012-2013) $ 23,848

TopTen Percent 24,000

Student Financial Aid (Texas Grant) 298,357

Student Financial Aid (Texas Educational Opportunity Grant) 67,200

Nursing Shortage Reduction 91,721
Total Passed through Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 505,126
Passed through Dallas County Community College District

Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 2011-2012 9-603001-Z-0046-24 18,669

Small Business Development Center (SBDC) 2012-2013 HQ-13-B-007 47,981
Total Passed through Dallas County Community College District 66,650
Passed through Texas Education Agency

Adult Basic Education 120100017110397 -

Adult Basic Education 130100017110461 126,478

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families - State 133625017110435 14,447
Total Passed through Texas Education Agency 140,925
Passed through Texas Workforce Commission

Skills Devel opment Fund 2511SDF000 63,031

Skills Devel opment Fund 2513SSD000 4,016

Skills Devel opment Fund 2512SDF000 90,620

Skills Devel opment Fund 2512SDF001 74,134
Total Passed through Texas Workforce Commission 231,801
Passed through Texas Department of Agriculture

Viticulture and Enology Certificate Agreement EVER1011-15 41,071

Viticulture Outreach Education Team Agreement EVER1011-17 13,555
Total Passed through Texas Department of Agriculture 54,626
Total State Financial Assistance $ 999,128
Note 1l: State Assistance Reconciliation
State Grants and Contracts per Exhibit 2 $ 999,128
Reconciling Items:

None -
Total Expenditures per Schedule of State Financial Assistance $ 999,128

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies Used in Preparing the Schedule

The accompanying schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. See Note 2 to the financial statements for
Grayson College's significant accounting policies. These expenditures are reported on Grayson College's fiscal year.

Expenditure reports to funding agencies are prepared on the award period basis.
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ADAI\/II, LINDSEY & COI\/IPANY, L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

123 NORTH CROCKETT STREET, SUITE 100
SHERMAN, TEXAS 75090

ALC

STRENGTH IN NUMBER

(903) 892-2727
FACSIMILE: (903) 868-9682

DAROLD P. ADAMI www. adamilindsey.com
JAMESA. LINDSEY

DAROLD P. ADAMI, JR.
BELINDA W. DEVINCENTIS

Independent Auditor’sReport on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other MattersBased on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Trustees
Grayson College
6101 Grayson Drive
Denison, Texas

Members of the Board:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americaand the standards
applicableto financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented component unit of Grayson College
(College) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the College' s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 27, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’ sinternal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the College's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal
control.

A deficiency ininternal control existswhen the design or operation of acontrol does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatementson atimely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that amaterial misstatement of the entity’ sfinancial statementswill not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
atimely basis. A significant deficiency isadeficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, ininternal control that isless severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in thefirst paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficienciesin internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.
Giventhese limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficienciesininternal control that we consider to be material
weakness. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Trustees
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of thisreport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’ sinternal control or on compliance. Thisreportis
anintegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gover nment Auditing Standardsin considering the entity’ sinternal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ﬂa&wmﬁ, Juua&tj, c C’mm.paij, L.LP

Sherman, Texas
November 27, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and Internal Control over
Compliancein Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular

Board of Trustees
Grayson College
6101 Grayson Drive
Denison, Texas

Members of the Board:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of Grayson College (College) with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have adirect and material
effect on each of the College’s major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 2013. The College’s major federal
programs areidentified inthe summary of auditor’ sresults section of the accompanying schedul e of findings and questioned
costs.

M anagement’s Responsibility
Management is for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal
programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on compliance for each of the College’ smajor federal programsbased on our audit
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicableto financial auditscontained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Auditsof
Sates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide alegal determination of the College's compliance.

-41 -



Board of Trustees
Page 2

Opinion of Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Grayson College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have adirect and material effect on each of its major federal programsfor the year ended August 31, 2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Collegeisresponsiblefor establishing and maintaining effectiveinternal control over compliancewith the
types of compliance requirementsreferred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the
College'sinternal control over compliance with the types of requirementsthat could have adirect and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliancein accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’ sinternal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the norma course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with atype of compliance requirement of afederal program onatimely basis. A material weaknessin
internal control over complianceisadeficiency, or combination of deficiencies, ininternal control over compliance, such that
thereisareasonable possibility that material noncompliance with atype of compliance requirement of afederal programwill
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on atimely basis. A significant deficiency ininternal control over complianceis
adeficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, ininternal control over compliance with atype of compliance requirement of a
federal programthat isless severe than amaterial weaknessininternal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of theinternal control over compliance wasfor the limited purpose described in thefirst paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficienciesininternal control over compliance that we consider
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of thisreport oninternal control over complianceis solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control

over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, thisreportis
not suitable for any other purpose.

Ao, Jf,uala.y c Comparg, L.LP.

Sherman, Texas
November 27, 2013
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Part |

Part 11

Grayson College
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended August 31, 2013

Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor's Report Issued on the Financial Statements
Unmodified

Internal Control Findings Disclosed in the Audit of the Financial Statements
Material Weaknesses |dentified
Significant Deficiencies Identified that are not Considered to be Material Weaknesses

Noncompliance Material to the Financial Statements
None

Federal and State Awards

Internal Control Findings Disclosed in the Audit of Major Programs
Material Weaknesses |dentified
Significant Deficiencies Identified that are not Considered to be Material Weaknesses

Type of Auditor's Report on Compliance for Mgjor Programs
Unmodified

Did the Audit Disclose Findings Required to be Reported under Section _.510(a)
No

Major Programs - Federal

Student Financial Aid Programs Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG)
Federal Workstudy Program
Federal Pell Grant Program
Federal Direct Student Loan Program

Adult Education - Basic Grantsto States

Carl Perkins Vocational Education

Public Works and Economic Development

Magjor Programs - State
Texas Grants
Towards Excellence, Access and Success
Texas Educational Opportunity Grant

Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and Type B Programs
Federal - $356,289
State - $300,000

Low Risk Auditee
Yes

Findings Related to the Financial Statements

None

Part Il Findingsand Questioned Costs Related to the Federal and State Awards

None
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Grayson College
Schedule of Statusof Prior Year Findings
Year Ended August 31, 2013

None



Statistical Supplement

(Unaudited)



Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt

Restricted - Expendable
Restricted - Nonexpendable
Unrestricted

Total Primary Government Net Position

Grayson College
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31,

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$18670 $15298 $13420 $13066 $13664 $13,102 $11667 $ 9567 $ 8674 $ 7,3%
2,360 2,713 3,359 3,172 2,750 1,241 1,945 1,797 1,736 1,738
- - - - - - 398 389 386 388
25,653 25,107 21,990 20,298 18,747 16,198 15,926 14,332 11,429 10,705
$46,683 $43118 $38769 $36536 $35161 $30541 $29936 $26,085 $22225 $20,227
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Tuition and Fees (Net of Discounts)
Governmental Grants and Contracts

Federal Grants and Contracts

State Grants and Contracts

Local Grants and Contracts
Non-Governental Grants and Contracts
Sales & Services of Educationa Activities
Investment Income (Program Restricted)
Auxiliary enterprises
Other Operating Revenue

Total Operating Revenues

State Appropriations
Ad Vaorem Taxes
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
Investment Income
Gain on Disposition of Fixed Assets
Other non-operating revenues

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Tuition and Fees (Net of Discounts)
Governmental Grants and Contracts

Federal Grants and Contracts

State Grants and Contracts

Loca Grants and Contracts
Non-Governental Grants and Contracts
Sales & Services of Educational Activities
Investment Income (Program Restricted)
Auxiliary enterprises
Other Operating Revenue

Total Operating Revenues

State Appropriations
Ad Vaorem Taxes
Federal Revenue, Non-Operating
Gifts
Investment Income
Gain on Disposition of Fixed Assets
Other non-operating revenues

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Grayson College

Revenues by Sour ce
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended August 31,

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$ 4877 $ 4923 $ 4591 $ 4435 $ 4394 $ 4022 $ 3832 $ 328 $ 3074 $ 3,003

1,246 1,833 1,223 1,112 1,017 946 2,216 1,258 1,305 1,138

999 1,365 1,671 1,618 952 1,640 1,326 1,265 423 570

- - - - - - - 960 - -

282 247 309 379 329 14 10 18 18 25

51 49 47 53 49 50 45 39 65 67

- - - - - - 97 58 30 44

1,860 1,701 2,082 2,027 2,518 2,552 2,199 2,046 1,988 1,927

200 181 240 190 161 153 179 139 135 128

9,515 10,299 10,163 9,814 9,420 9,377 9,904 9,071 7,038 6,902

8,967 9,002 9,038 9,095 9,059 8,993 8,469 8,372 7,599 7,537

12,823 12,579 12,550 12,231 11,796 8,664 8,451 7,402 6,588 5,869

9,745 11,188 11,802 9,092 4,963 3,180 3,183 3,141 3,740 3,564

- - - - 43 - - - - -

65 93 136 149 358 592 891 706 355 190

- - - 1 - - - - - -

31,600 32,862 33,526 30,568 26,219 21,429 20,994 19,621 18,282 17,160

$41,115 $43161 $43689 $40,382 $35639 $30,806 $30,898 $28,692 $25320 $24,062

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended August 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

11.86% 11.41% 10.51% 10.98% 12.33% 13.06% 12.40% 11.46% 12.14% 12.48%
3.03% 4.25% 2.80% 2.75% 2.85% 3.07% 7.17% 4.38% 5.15% 4.73%
2.43% 3.16% 3.82% 4.01% 2.67% 5.32% 4.29% 4.41% 1.67% 2.37%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.35% 0.00% 0.00%
0.69% 0.57% 0.71% 0.94% 0.92% 0.05% 0.03% 0.06% 0.07% 0.10%
0.12% 0.11% 0.11% 0.13% 0.14% 0.16% 0.15% 0.14% 0.26% 0.28%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.31% 0.20% 0.12% 0.18%
4.52% 3.94% 4.77% 5.02% 7.07% 8.28% 7.12% 7.13% 7.85% 8.01%
0.49% 0.42% 0.55% 0.47% 0.45% 0.50% 0.58% 0.48% 0.53% 0.53%
23.14% 23.86% 23.26% 24.30% 26.43% 30.44% 32.05% 31.62% 27.80% 28.68%
21.81% 20.86% 20.69% 22.52% 25.42% 29.19% 27.41% 29.18% 30.01% 31.32%
31.19% 29.14% 28.73% 30.29% 33.10% 28.12% 27.35% 25.80% 26.02% 24.39%
23.70% 25.92% 27.01% 22.51% 13.93% 10.32% 10.30% 10.95% 14.77% 14.81%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.12% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.16% 0.22% 0.31% 0.37% 1.00% 1.92% 2.88% 2.46% 1.40% 0.79%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
76.86% 76.14% 76.74% 75.70% 73.57% 69.56% 67.95% 68.38% 72.20% 71.32%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%
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Instruction
Public Service
Acacemic Support
Student Services
Ingtitutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation Expense
Total Operating Expenses
Interest on Capital Related Debt
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Total Nonoperating Expenses
Total Expenses

Instruction
Public Service
Acacemic Support
Student Services
Ingtitutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Depreciation Expense
Total Operating Expenses
Interest on Capital Related Debt
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Total Nonoperating Expenses
Total Expenses

Grayson College
Program Expenses by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended August 31,

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$12,660 $13236 $13088 $12498 $11,237 $10379 $11242 $ 9864 $ 9045 $ 8563
597 631 694 706 623 543 448 473 411 370
1,618 1,512 1,490 1,531 1,517 1,276 1,175 944 1,249 964
2,218 2,155 2,264 2,098 1,972 2,013 1,660 1,509 1,425 1,527
3,805 3,899 3,731 3,492 3,147 3,253 2,731 2,568 2,340 2,279
4,375 3,073 4,421 4,909 3,574 3,425 3,038 2,765 2,347 2,365
5,451 6,511 7,469 5,920 2,974 2,298 1,853 1,999 2,344 2,215
3,716 3,590 4,151 3,970 3,825 3,269 3,026 3,037 2,775 2,652
2,047 1,990 1,790 1,405 1,085 988 887 742 638 519
36,487 36,597 39,098 36,529 29,954 27,444 26,060 23,901 22,574 21,454
2,160 2,227 2,332 2,071 943 820 792 817 859 608
21 - 36 417 132 67 205 123 152 99
2,181 2,227 2,368 2,488 1,075 887 997 940 1,011 707
$38668 $38824 $41466 $39,017 $31,029 $28331 $27,057 $24,841 $23585 $22,161
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended August 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
3273%  34.08%  3155%  32.02%  3620%  36.62%  4154%  39.71%  38.35%  38.64%
1.54% 1.63% 1.67% 1.81% 2.01% 1.92% 1.66% 1.90% 1.74% 1.67%
4.18% 3.89% 3.59% 3.92% 4.89% 4.50% 4.34% 3.80% 5.30% 4.35%
5.74% 5.55% 5.46% 5.38% 6.36% 7.11% 6.14% 6.07% 6.04% 6.89%
9.84%  10.04% 9.00% 8.95%  10.14%  11.48%  10.09%  10.34% 9.92%  10.28%
11.31% 792%  10.66%  1258%  1152%  12.09% = 11.23%  11.13% 9.95%  10.67%
14.10% 16.77% 18.01% 15.17% 9.58% 8.11% 6.85% 8.05% 9.94% 10.00%
9.61% 9.25%  1001%  10.18%  1233%  1154%  11.18%  1223% 11.77%  11.97%
5.29% 5.13% 4.32% 3.60% 3.50% 3.49% 3.28% 2.99% 2.71% 2.34%
94.36%  94.26%  94.29%  93.62%  9654%  96.87%  96.32%  96.22%  95.71%  96.81%
5.59% 5.74% 5.62% 5.31% 3.04% 2.89% 2.93% 3.29% 3.64% 2.74%
0.05% 0.00% 0.09% 1.07% 0.43% 0.24% 0.76% 0.50% 0.64% 0.45%
5.64% 5.74% 5.71% 6.38% 3.46% 3.13% 3.68% 3.78% 4.29% 3.19%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%
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Grayson College
Tuition and Fees
Last Ten Academic Years
(Unaudited)

Resident
Fees per Semester Credit Hour (SCH)

Academic Fees per student Increase from  Increase from
Y ear Matriculation Student ID  International In-Digtrict  Out-of District ~ General Student Cost for 12 SCH Cost for 12 SCH  Prior Year Prior Y ear
(Fall) Fee Fee Fee Tuition Tuition Fee Service Fee In-District Out-of-District In-District Out-of-District
2012 $ 10 $ 2 3 - % 45 3 80 $ 8 $ 7 $ 732 % 1,152 15.09% 12.94%
2011 10 2 - 42 74 8 2 636 1,020 10.42% 13.33%
2010 10 2 - 37 64 8 2 576 900 4.35% 15.38%
2009 10 2 - 35 54 8 2 552 780 0.00% 0.00%
2008 10 2 - 35 54 8 2 552 780 4.55% 18.18%
2007 10 2 - 33 44 8 2 528 660 0.00% 0.00%
2006 10 2 - 33 a4 8 2 528 660 0.00% 0.00%
2005 10 2 - 33 44 8 2 528 660 2.33% 10.00%
2004 10 2 - 32 39 8 2 516 600 13.16% 13.64%
2003 10 2 - 28 34 7 2 456 528

Non-Resident

Fees per Semester Credit Hour (SCH)

Academic Fees per student Non-Resident Non-Resident Increase from  Increase from
Y ear Matriculation Student ID  International Tuition Tuition General Student Cost for 12 SCH Cost for 12 SCH  Prior Year Prior Y ear
(Fall) Fee Fee Fee Out of State  Internationa Fee Service Fee Out of State Internationa Out of State International
2012 $ 10 $ 2 3 225 % 129 $ 129 % 8 $ 7 % 1,740 $ 1,965 8.21% 7.20%
2011 10 2 225 123 123 8 2 1,608 1,833 8.06% 7.01%
2010 10 2 225 113 113 8 2 1,488 1,713 8.77% 7.53%
2009 10 2 225 103 103 8 2 1,368 1,593 0.00% 0.00%
2008 10 2 225 103 103 8 2 1,368 1,593 9.62% 8.15%
2007 10 2 225 93 93 8 2 1,248 1,473 0.00% 0.00%
2006 10 2 225 93 93 8 2 1,248 1,473 0.00% 0.00%
2005 10 2 225 93 93 8 2 1,248 1,473 5.05% 4.25%
2004 10 2 225 88 88 8 2 1,188 1,413 10.00% 8.28%
2003 10 2 225 80 80 7 2 1,080 1,305
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Grayson College
Assessed Value and Taxable Assessed Value of Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
(amounts expressed in thousands) | | Direct Rate
Ratio of Taxable
Assessed Taxable Assessed Value  Maintenance Debt

Fiscal Valuation Less: Assessed to Assessed & Operations Service Total

Y ear of Property Exemptions  Value (TAV) Value (@) (a (a
2012-2013 $10,359,392 $ 3,175512 $ 7,183,880 69.35% $0.13060 $0.05120 $0.18180
2011-2012 10,239,690 3,168,077 7,071,613 69.06% 0.13617 0.04563 0.18180
2010-2011 10,223,678 3,088,600 7,135,078 69.79% 0.13300 0.04880 0.18180
2009 - 2010 9,979,063 3,079,341 6,899,722 69.14% 0.13278 0.05094 0.18372
2008 - 2009 9,300,832 2,926,033 6,374,799 68.54% 0.13000 0.05436 0.18436
2007 - 2008 8,602,533 2,736,999 5,865,534 68.18% 0.13974 0.00000 0.13974
2006 - 2007 8,022,443 2,479,299 5,543,144 69.10% 0.14774 0.00000 0.14774
2005 - 2006 7,241,918 2,221,560 5,020,358 69.32% 0.14002 0.00000 0.14002
2004 - 2005 6,570,126 1,938,514 4,631,612 70.50% 0.13411 0.00000 0.13411
2003 - 2004 6,000,661 1,724,927 4,275,734 71.25% 0.12626 0.00000 0.12626

Source: Local Appraisal Digtrict
Notes: Property is assessed at full market value
(a) per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation
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Grayson College

State Appropriations per FTSE and Contact Hour

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

| Appropriation per FTSE |

Appropriation per Contact Hour

State
Appropriation State

(amounts State Academic  Voc/Tech Total Appropriation

expressed FTSE  Appropriation Contact Contact Contact per Contact
Fiscal Year  inthousands) (@) per FTSE Hours (a) Hours (b) Hours Hour
2012-2013 $ 7,499 4382 $ 1,711 1,364 850 2214 % 3.39
2011 - 2012 7,576 4,711 1,608 1,509 936 2,445 3.10
2010 - 2011 6,912 4,966 1,392 1,643 932 2,575 2.68
2009 - 2010 6,979 4,541 1,537 1,481 895 2,376 2.94
2008 - 2009 6,955 3,927 1,771 1,312 734 2,046 3.40
2007 - 2008 6,955 3,490 1,993 1,171 621 1,792 3.88
2006 - 2007 6,539 3,487 1,875 1,195 602 1,797 3.64
2005 - 2006 6,489 3,368 1,927 1,135 611 1,746 3.72
2004 - 2005 6,041 3,500 1,726 1,147 698 1,845 3.27
2003 - 2004 6,041 3,528 1,712 1,156 657 1,813 333
Note:

FTSE isdefined as the number of full-time students plus total hours taken by part-time students divided by 24.

(a) Source: CBM001
(b) Source: CBMOOA
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Grayson College
Principal Taxpayers
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)
Type of Taxable Assessed Value (TAV) by Tax Y ear ($000 omitted)
Taxpayer Business 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Oncor Electric Utility $ 70,708 $ 67,556 $ 65,690 $ 68,250 $ 69,764 $ 75,177 $ 72,258 $ 74,687 $ 69,049 $ 65,081
UHS of Texoma, Inc Hospital 30,001 30,251 30,251 99,900 61,845 31,914 - - - -
Gulf Crossing Pipeline Co Energy 35,429 46,723 51,810 58,747 - - - - - -
Sherman Town Center LP Retail 46,291 45,316 44,295 43,125 43,236 49,469 50,862 50,654 - -
Texas Instruments Manufacturing - - - 27,981 39,745 - - 20,007 38,001 42,647
Universal Health Services Medical - - 40,080 44,400 - - - - - -
Jetta Operating Co. Inc Energy 47,525 31,638 - - - - - - - -
XTO Energy, Inc. Utility 39,835 43,979 41,227 53,261 35,486 46,631 34,646 38,453 27,928 -
Kwikset Corporation Manufacturing 32,446 28,907 29,004 31,103 34,073 40,953 29,886 27,786 31,351 30,485
Union Pacific Railroad Transportation 41,162 33,596 33,616 34,277 33,798 30,712 - - 16,414 20,881
BNSF Railway Co Transportation 29,067 - - - - - - - - -
Energy Transfer Fuel LP Energy - - 28,126 - 28,288 28,625 36,113 21,584 - -
Verizon Southwest Utility - - - - 22,691 30,765 27,310 25,633 25,633 37,063
Sherman Grayson Hospital LLC Hospital 30,816 42,530 42,333 27,309 - - - - - -
MEMC Southwest, Inc. Manufacturing - - - - 21,693 23,722 23,450 18,995 18,990 18,990
Globitech Incorporated Manufacturing - 49,626 - - - 21,942 21,000 - - -
Woodmont Sherman LP Retail - - - - - - 17,920 - - -
Walmart Stores, Inc. Retail - - - - - - 18,786 18,807 18,829 18,950
Tyson Fresh Meats, Inc. Food - - - - - - - 41,385 - -
Venoco, Inc. Energy - - - - - - - - 15,752 -
A-S71 Sherman Retail - - - - - - - - 42,669 -
Southwestern Bell Telephone Utility - - - - - - - - - 14,822
Folger Coffee Company Manufacturing - - - - - - - - - 22,501
Chevron USA, Inc. Energy - - - - - - - - - 25,239
Totals $ 403,280 $ 420,122 $ 406,432 $ 488,353 $ 390,619 $ 379,910 $ 332,231 $ 337,991 $ 304,616 $ 296,659
Total Taxable Assessed Value $ 7,183,880 $ 7,071,613 $ 7,135,078 $ 6,899,722 $ 6,374,799 $ 5,865,534 $ 5543144 $ 5,020,358 $ 4,631,612 $ 4,275,734
Type of % of Taxable Assessed Value (TAV) by Tax Year
Taxpayer Business 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Oncor Electric Utility 0.98% 0.96% 0.92% 0.99% 1.09% 1.28% 1.30% 1.49% 1.49% 1.52%
UHS of Texoma, Inc Hospital 0.42% 0.43% 0.42% 1.45% 0.97% 0.54% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gulf Crossing Pipeline Co Energy 0.49% 0.66% 0.73% 0.85% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sherman Town Center LP Retail 0.64% 0.64% 0.62% 0.63% 0.68% 0.84% 0.92% 1.01% 0.00% 0.00%
Texas Instruments Manufacturing 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.41% 0.62% 0.00% 0.00% 0.40% 0.82% 1.00%
Universal Health Services Medica 0.00% 0.00% 0.56% 0.64% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Jetta Operating Co. Inc Energy 0.66% 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
XTO Energy, Inc. Utility 0.55% 0.62% 0.58% 0.77% 0.56% 0.80% 0.63% 0.77% 0.60% 0.00%
Kwikset Corporation Manufacturing 0.45% 0.41% 0.41% 0.45% 0.53% 0.70% 0.54% 0.55% 0.68% 0.71%
Union Pacific Railroad Transportation 0.57% 0.48% 0.47% 0.50% 0.53% 0.52% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35% 0.49%
BNSF Railway Co Transportation 0.40% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Energy Transfer Fuel LP Energy 0.00% 0.00% 0.39% 0.00% 0.44% 0.49% 0.65% 0.43% 0.00% 0.00%
Verizon Southwest Utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.36% 0.52% 0.49% 0.51% 0.55% 0.87%
Sherman Grayson Hospital LLC Hospital 0.43% 0.60% 0.59% 0.40% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
MEMC Southwest, Inc. Manufacturing 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.34% 0.40% 0.42% 0.38% 0.41% 0.44%
Globitech Incorporated Manufacturing 0.00% 0.70% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.37% 0.38% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Woodmont Sherman LP Retail 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.32% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Walmart Stores, Inc. Retail 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.34% 0.37% 0.41% 0.44%
Tyson Fresh Meats, Inc. Food 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.82% 0.00% 0.00%
Venoco, Inc. Energy 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.34% 0.00%
A-S71 Sherman Retail 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.92% 0.00%
Southwestern Bell Telephone Utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35%
Folger Coffee Company Manufacturing 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.53%
Chevron USA, Inc. Energy 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.59%

5.59% 5.95% 5.69% 7.09% 6.12% 6.46% 5.99% 6.73% 6.57% 6.94%

Source: County Appraisal District
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Grayson College
Property Tax Leviesand Collections
Last Ten Tax Years

(Unaudited)
Prior Current

Fiscal Year Cumulative Adjusted Collections - Collectionsof  Collections of Total Cumulative
Ended Levy Levy Tax Levy Year of Levy Prior Levies Prior Levies Collections Collections of

August 31 (@) Adjustments (b) (© Percentage (d) (e (C+D+E) Adjusted Levy
2013 12566 $ (49 ¢ 12517  $ 12,217 97.60% $ - $ - % 12,217 97.60%
2012 12,384 (63) 12,321 11,973 97.18% - 172 12,145 98.57%
2011 12,350 (92) 12,258 11,903 97.10% 139 54 12,096 98.68%
2010 12,064 (86) 11,978 11,535 96.30% 265 29 11,829 98.76%
2009 11,414 81 11,495 11,108 96.63% 312 13 11,433 99.46%
2008 8,261 122 8,383 8,126 96.93% 188 4 8,318 99.22%
2007 8,314 (28) 8,286 8,038 97.01% 230 3 8,271 99.82%
2006 7,102 133 7,235 6,995 96.68% 215 2 7,212 99.68%
2005 6,426 (35) 6,391 6,167 96.50% 218 1 6,386 99.92%
2004 5,657 7 5,664 5,452 96.26% 199 1 5,652 99.79%

Amounts expressed in thousands

Source: Loca Tax Assessor Collector and College records
(a) Asreported in the notes to the financial statements for the year of the levy.

(b) Asof August 31st of the current reporting year.

(c) Property tax only -- does not include penalties and interest
(d) Represents cumul ative collections of prior years not collected in the current year or the year of levy.
(e) Represents current year collections of prior year levies.
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Grayson College
Ratios of Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

For the Y ear Ended August 31 (amounts expressed in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
General Bonded Debt
General Obligation Bonds $39,145 $40,720 $42,155 $43465 $44665 $44,765 $ - $ - 8 - 3 -
Notes and Capital Leases - - - - - - - - - -
Less: Funds Restricted for Debt Service (1,080) (794) (784) (800) (471) - - - - -
Net General Bonded Debt 38,065 39,926 41,371 42,665 44,194 44,765 - - - -
Other Debt
Revenue Bonds 11,900 12,995 14,065 15,560 16,525 17,460 18,360 19,239 19,991 20,734
Notes and Capital Leases 141 180 217 67 93 119 142 60 82 405
Total Outstanding Debt $50,106 $53101 $55653 $58292 $60,812 $62,344 $18502 $19299 $20,073 $21,139
General Bonded Debt Ratios
Per Capita $312.17 $32883 $34226 $35545 $371.99 $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Per FTSE 8,687 8,475 8,331 9,396 11,254 12,827 - - - -
As a percentage of Taxable Assessed Value 0.53% 0.56% 0.58% 0.62% 0.69% 0.76% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Outstanding Debt Ratios
Per Capita $410.92 $43734 $46041 $48565 $511.87 $52548 $156.16 $16528 $173.26 $183.84
Per FTSE 11,435 11,272 11,207 12,837 15,486 17,864 5,306 5,730 5,735 5,992
As a Percentage of Taxable Assessed Vaue 0.70% 0.75% 0.78% 0.84% 0.95% 1.06% 0.33% 0.38% 0.43% 0.49%

Notes:
Ratios calculated using population and TAV from corresponding fiscal year.
Debt per student ratios calculated using full-time equivalent enrollment for corresponding fiscal year.
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Grayson College
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

For the Year Ended August 31 (amounts expressed in thousands)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Taxable Assessed Value $7,183,880 $7,071,613 $7,135078 $6,899,722 $6,374,799 $5865534 $5543,144 $5,020,358 $4,631,612 $4,275,734
General Obligations Bonds
Statutory Tax Levy Limit for

Debt Service $ 35919 $ 3H3B8 $ 3H6/5 $ 34499 $ 31874 $ 29328 $ 27,716 $ 25102 $ 23158 $ 21,379
Less Funds Restricted for Repayment

of General Obligation Bonds 1,080 794 784 800 471 - - - - -
Total Net General Obgligation Debt 34,839 34,564 34,891 33,699 31,403 29,328 27,716 25,102 23,158 21,379
Current Y ear Debt Service

Requirements 3,148 3,148 3,078 3,011 1,916 1,007 - - - -

Excess of Statuary Limit for Debt
Service over Current Requirements  $ 31,691 $ 31416 $ 31813 $ 30688 $ 29487 $ 28321 $ 27716 $ 25102 $ 23158 $ 21,379

Net Current Requirements as
a % of Statutory Limit 5.76% 6.66% 6.43% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Note: Texas Education Code Section 130.122 limits the debt service tax levy of community colleges to $0.50 per hundred dollars taxable assessed va uation.
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Grayson College
Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Debt Service Reguirements
Pledged Revenues ($000 omitted) ($000 omitted)
Fiscal Year Student Community
Ended General Service  Registration Laboratory  Education  Investment  Auxiliary Coverage
August 31,  Tuition Use Fee Fee Fees Fees Fees Income Enterprises Total Principal Interest Total Ratio
2013 $ 1622 $ 845 $ 740 3 288 % 328 $ 4 $ 57 $ 3298 $ 7,252 $ 1095 $ 380 $ 1475 4.92
2012 1,781 915 529 309 311 107 72 3,315 7,339 1,070 401 1,471 4.99
2011 1,661 968 242 334 357 112 113 3,590 7,377 1,150 464 1,614 457
2010 1,386 888 222 307 353 80 158 3,197 6,591 965 667 1,632 4.04
2009 1,178 772 193 276 246 44 168 3,210 6,087 935 694 1,629 3.74
2008 1,042 676 169 231 201 89 354 2,841 5,603 900 722 1,622 3.45
2007 984 674 168 223 184 162 532 2,595 5,522 880 747 1,627 3.39
2006 845 648 162 189 175 144 368 2,392 4,923 850 772 1,622 3.04
2005 780 597 171 184 181 86 226 2,473 4,698 1,051 814 1,865 252
2004 740 598 171 176 181 68 87 2,376 4,397 532 568 1,100 4.00
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Grayson College
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Taxing District
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
District Personal District
Digtrict District Personal Income per Unemployment
Calendar Y ear Population Income Capita Rate
2012 121,935 @ € 7.2%
2011 121,419 $4,055,831,000 $ 33,404 8.3%
2010 120,877 3,848,851,000 32,066 8.4%
2009 120,030 3,848,851,000 32,066 8.1%
2008 118,804 3,624,919,000 30,015 5.3%
2007 118,641 3,412,174,000 28,901 4.7%
2006 118,478 3,230,638,000 27,591 4.9%
2005 116,763 3,059,973,000 26,207 5.2%
2004 115,855 2,856,052,000 24,652 6.1%
2003 114,984 2,694,267,000 23,424 7.0%

(a) Information is not yet available

Sour ces:

Population from U.S. Bureau of Census

Person income from U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
Unemployment rate from Texas Workforce Commission

-56 -



Grayson College
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine YearsPrior

(Unaudited)

Current Fiscal Year

Number of Percentage of Total

Employer Employees County Employment
Tyson Fresh Meats 1,250 1,499 2.61%
Texoma Health Care Systems 1,250 1,499 2.56%
CIGNA Company 1,000 1,249 2.26%
Texas Instruments 1,000 1,249 2.24%
Wilson N. Jones Regional Health Systems 1,000 1,249 1.87%
Sherman ISD 750 999 1.76%
Ruiz Foods 500 749 1.31%
Denison ISD 500 749 1.16%
Grayson County 500 749 0.99%
Trailblazer Health Enterprises 500 749 0.97%
Total 8,250 10,740
Sour ce:

Texas Workforce Commission

Notes:

Percentages are cal culated using the midpoints of the ranges.

Information for nine years prior is unavailable and the College has chosen to implement this schedule

prospectively.
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Grayson College
Enrollment Details
Last FiveFiscal Years

(Unaudited)
For the Y ear Ended August 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Faculty
Full-Time 98 97 97 95 Q0 86 88 87 93 83
Part-Time 232 232 183 152 153 145 142 137 122 122
Total 330 329 280 247 243 231 230 224 215 205
Percent
Full-Time 29.7% 29.5% 34.6% 38.5% 37.0% 37.2% 38.3% 38.8% 43.3% 40.5%
Part-Time 70.3% 70.5% 65.4% 61.5% 63.0% 62.8% 61.7% 61.2% 56.7% 59.5%
Staff and Administrators
Full-Time 132 129 136 135 134 130 116 119 118 113
Part-Time -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Tota 132 129 136 135 134 130 116 119 118 113
Percent
Full-Time 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Part-Time 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
FTSE per Full-Time Faculty 44.7 48.6 51.2 47.8 43.6 40.6 39.6 38.7 37.6 425
33.2 36.5 36.5 33.6 29.3 26.8 30.1 28.3 29.7 31.2

FTSE per Full-Time Staff Member
$ 46,500 $ 45600 $ 44,700

Average Annual Faculty Salary $ 53725 $53695 $54,762 $53734 $53058 $ 47,740 $ 46,836
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Grayson College
Enrollment Details
Last FiveFiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008
Student Classification Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
00-30 hours 2,991 61.02% 4,171 80.74% 4,152 82.48% 3,968 84.21% 3,382 82.05%
31-60 hours 1,176 23.99% 862 16.69% 882 17.52% 538 11.42% 594 14.41%
> 60 hours 735 14.99% 133 2.57% 0 0.00% 206 4.37% 146 3.54%
Total 4,902 100.00% 5,166 100.00% 5,034 100.00% 4712 100.00% 4,122 100.00%

Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008
Semester Hour Load Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Lessthan 3 9 0.18% 8 0.15% 9 0.18% 13 0.28% 13 0.32%
3-5 semester hours 790 16.12% 704 13.63% 690 13.71% 714 15.15% 663 16.08%
6-8 semester hours 1,091 22.26% 1,141 22.09% 1,116 22.17% 1,055 22.39% 809 19.63%
9-11 semester hours 953 19.44% 933 18.06% 940 18.67% 456 9.68% 648 15.72%
12-14 semester hours 1,695 34.57% 1,919 37.15% 1,836 36.47% 1,876 39.81% 1,473 35.73%
15-17 semester hours 338 6.90% 398 7.70% 375 7.45% 499 10.59% 462 11.21%
18 & over 26 0.53% 63 1.22% 68 1.35% 99 2.10% 54 1.31%
Total 4,902 100.00% 5,166 100.00% 5,034 100.00% 4,712 100.00% 4,122 100.00%

Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008
Tuition Status Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Texas Resident (In-District) 3,512 71.64% 3,678 71.20% 3,555 70.62% 3,328 70.63% 2,817 68.34%
Texas Resident (Out-of-District) 1,068 21.79%% 1,135 21.97% 1,111 22.07% 1,046 22.20% 944 22.90%
Non-Resident Tuition 322 6.57% 353 6.83% 368 7.31% 338 7.17% 361 8.76%
Total 4,902 100.00% 5,166 100.00% 5,034 100.00% 4712 100.00% 4,122 100.00%
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Gender
Female
Mae
Total

Ethnic Origin
White

African American
Hispanic

Native American
International
Asian
Multi-Racial
Tota

Age
Under 18
18-21
22-24
25-30
31-35
36-50
51-64

61 & over

Grayson College
Student Profile
Last FiveFiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
3,039 62.00% 3,178 61.52% 3,072 61.03% 2,881 61.14% 2,508 60.84%
1,863 38.00% 1,988 38.48% 1,962 38.97% 1,831 38.86% 1,614 39.16%
4,902 100.00% 5,166 100.00% 5,034 100.00% 4,712 100.00% 4,122 100.00%
Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
3,591 73.26% 3,704 71.70% 4,073 80.92% 3,583 76.04% 3,208 77.82%
296 6.04% 343 6.64% 377 7.49% 329 6.98% 240 5.82%
532 10.85% 542 10.49% 280 5.56% 318 6.75% 260 6.31%
106 2.16% 144 2.79% 191 3.79% 286 6.07% 207 5.02%
126 2.57% 164 3.17% 61 1.21% 135 2.87% 161 3.91%
61 1.24% 44 0.85% 52 1.03% 61 1.29% 46 1.12%
190 3.88% 225 4.36% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
4,902 100.00% 5,166 100.00% 5,034 100.00% 4712 100.00% 4,122 100.00%
Fall 2012 Fall 2011 Fall 2010 Fall 2009 Fall 2008
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
812 16.56% 773 14.96% 658 13.07% 602 12.77% 575 13.95%
1,610 32.85% 1,811 35.06% 1,849 36.73% 1,759 37.33% 1,660 40.27%
537 10.95% 559 10.82% 574 11.40% 596 12.65% 523 12.69%
573 11.69% 737 14.27% 758 15.06% 738 15.66% 562 13.63%
439 8.96% 440 8.52% 397 7.89% 299 6.35% 244 5.92%
692 14.12% 668 12.93% 652 12.95% 568 12.05% 446 10.82%
230 4.69% 173 3.35% 139 2.76% 135 2.87% 98 2.38%
9 0.18% 5 0.10% 7 0.14% 15 0.32% 14 0.34%
4,902 100.00% 5,166 100.01% 5,034 100.00% 4712 100.00% 4,122 100.00%
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Grayson College
Transfersto Senior Texas Institutions
2011 - 2012 Graduates, Completersand Non-Returners

(Unaudited)
Transfer Transfer Transfer Total of % of
Student Student Student al Sample al Sample
Count Count Count Transfer Transfer
Institution Academic  Technicd  Tech-Prep  Students Students

Angelo State University 1 1 0.21%
Lamar University 2 2 0.42%
Midwestern State University 10 3 3 16 3.35%
Prairie View A & M University 3 3 0.63%
Sam Houston State University 1 1 0.21%
Stephen F. Austin State University 15 15 3.14%
Tarletan State University 5 1 2 8 1.67%
TexasA & M University 40 1 41 8.58%
Texas A & M University at Commerce 53 14 5 72 15.06%
Texas A & M University at Corpus Christi 6 2 8 1.67%
Texas A & M University San Antonio 1 1 0.21%
Texas State University 15 15 3.14%
Texas Tech University 44 2 2 48 10.04%
Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center 2 2 0.42%
Texas Woman's University 40 1 4 45 9.41%
The University of Texas at Arlington 11 1 15 27 5.65%
The University of Texas at Austin 15 2 2 19 3.97%
The University of Texas at Dallas 12 2 14 2.93%
The University of Texas at El Paso 1 1 0.21%
The University of Texas at Pan American 1 1 0.21%
The University of Texas at the Permian Basin 3 3 0.63%
The University of Texas at San Antonio 6 6 1.26%
The University of Texasat Tyler 3 1 4 0.84%
The University of Texas Health Center at San Antonio 1 1 0.21%
University of Houston 2 2 0.42%
University of Houston-Victoria 1 1 0.21%
University of North Texas 93 18 5 116 24.26%
University of North Texas Health Science Center 1 1 0.20%
West Texas A & M University 3 1 4 0.84%
Totals 389 47 42 478 100.00%
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Grayson College
Capital Asset Information
Fiscal Years 2009 to 2013

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Academic Buildings 20 20 19 18 18
Square Footage 407,848 407,848 399,848 337,500 304,320
Libraries 1 1 1 1 1
Square Footage 18,503 18,503 18,503 18,503 18,503
Number of Volumes 51,800 51,800 51,800 51,800 51,800
Administrative and support builidings 3 3 3 3 3
Square Footage 39,953 39,953 39,953 39,953 34,553
Dormitories 2 2 2 2 2
Square Footage 51,121 51,121 51,121 51,121 51,121
Number of Beds 180 180 180 180 180
Golf Course 2 2 2 2 2
Square Footage 4,122 4,122 4,122 4,122 4122
Dining Facilities 1 1 1 1 1
Square Footage 9,750 9,750 9,750 9,750 9,750
Average Daily Customers 300 300 300 300 300
Athletic Facilities 4 4 4 4 4
Square Footage 30,003 30,003 29,753 29,753 29,753
Gymnasiums 1 1 1 1 1
Baseball Field 1 1 1 1 1
Softball Field 1 1 1 1 1
Batting Cage 1 1 1 1 1
Plant Facilities 3 3 3 3 3
Square Footage 6,797 6,797 6,797 6,797 6,797
Transportation
Cars 3 3 3 3 3
Light Trucks/Vans 24 24 24 24 24
Buses 3 3 3 3 3
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